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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

GROUP RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the current year of 2017/18 was
HK$749,280,000 (2016/17: HK$800,343,000) and the overall profit was
HK$35,043,000 (2016/17: HK$27,985,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Although the revenue of the year under review was 6% less than the
previous year, the overall profit was up 25%. The better-than-expected
results attributed to the improvement of our garment business in
the second half of the year, the revaluation gains on our investment
properties as well as the positive results of our Wuxi investment.

Our business for the year under review recorded a profit from operations
of HK$17,096,000 as compared to HK$12,563,000 of the year before, a
36% increase despite the fact that our business revenue had dropped by
6%. The improvement was largely due to the reduction of administration
and operating expenses and a slightly higher gross margin.

Our operation in China (Panyu and Guigang) continued to be difficult and
negative result was recorded in the year under review. The drastic drop of
production orders and poor efficiency of our sewing workers accounted
for the unsatisfactory results. It is hoped that through the closure of some
of the non-profitable operations, expansion of domestic sale as well as
the reduction of our manufacturing costs, our China operation could pull
through this unfavourable business environment.

Our factory in Bangladesh in this financial year recorded a slight loss. The
negative results attributed to the increase of manufacturing costs, price
pressure from buyers and lack of regular orders in some months. The
stringent control of the Bangladesh government in industrial safety and
our factory’s strict compliance with the rules have gained back our
customers’ confidence and hopefully our business would be back on
track.

Our factory in Myanmar recorded an insignificant operational loss in the
year under review which is a huge improvement from the previous few
years. The orders had been steady which enhanced the management
of our sewing workers and their efficiency. We foresee that the situation
would continue into the coming year and we expect a breakeven result
for our Myanmar operation.

Our investments in Wuxi continued to have good results for the year
under review. Improved cotton quality, lower cotton prices and good
product mix are the reasons for the satisfactory results. In view of the
uncertainties brought about by the emerging U.S. — China trade war as
well as the upward trend of cotton prices, the management expects next
year to be profitable but at a reduced rate.

15 M 2%

KEBEHZ FE—L,/ —NFEZHRAL
749,280,000 56 (=& — 7~/ — L4 B -
800,343,000 7t) > T @ % F 535,043,000

JC(FE—N/—LFEE 27,985,000 7C) -
X0 ol B R R

fith A [ R 4 2 T U AR AR 6% o B B i R
115 £ 7125% o SERBT I 25 4 T3 i i A 42 B
REBRTHEAIUE - HEYHEZE UKL
it LA B fiE 85 B0 2 1 TR 26 A8 T B -

OB CE R AL BSOS s A
17,096,000 7C » 1 2 4F HIl /12,563,000
JC > IR E B AW 6% 0 &8 FIL LT
36% o 1 B el 2 il R 0 AT B KR
DL K R B T R S T B o

AL P (B &) 2 8E SR R
B> S [ AR BE R Bk A BTSSR o B ERT B
ST B R AR TR R A SR R
A o BB PH A T R A 2 R B PR
B DL KR R A o ) A

B AT LA JSE A UL R ) S P R

AR B N RL 2 ROV A B AR B B A
s 18 o B TET SE AR R S R Bk - B
Z ARG BT AR T A3 RS E 7T TS - &
T > 00 B 3 TS 2 A 2 B B B 3R AT
T Ja S A B 0k 91 0 e AR ST > R TED TR R IS
O J B A 4R [ SE 5N T B WUE o

7 B2 [ A Al ) 22 TR (e AR JBE TN B AR R R
BlEHE > RATRFEE I ERRE - fRENFTHE
i A 42 [ R n o S R DN 2 B AR AL
Ao 7 AR I T BE A UL RE 1R A B AR A > T A
) 8 S I AT WSl 2 SR

A B2 B 2 Q85 15 AT B R AE B T A A Bk TS R A
R o MACE R UE - MACEM T LR R
EMAaHRAEAMBZIERN - BERPRES
BT A A 2 AN W B IR R LA B AR TEAE A B T 2
S o B LT TH A W AR A7) T AT LA > e W E AT
REA BT D -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED &R A 4B 4 |
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

OUTLOOK

The unfavourable global market situation and the unstable currencies
would continue to affect our profitability in the coming year. The
uncertainties ignited by the emerging trade wars between countries
might have great impact on our core garment business. The
management would monitor the situation closely. Barring any unforeseen
circumstances, the management is of the opinion that our core garment
business would be able to maintain its profitability for the next financial
year and the same would apply to our Wuxi investment too.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their hard work and loyal
service to the Company during the past year.

By Order of the Board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. Y
EEENRED N
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS . . . . ERERBE
2018 2017
R )\ R +/—
HK$’000 HK$'000 Change
BT BT S )
Performance Indicators FBL IR
Revenue A 749,280 800,343 6%
Gross profit EH 137,549 139,307 -1%
Gross profit margin SSIES 18% 17% +1pp
Profit from operations RS A 17,096 12,563 36%
Operating margin 28 I F) R 2% 2% 0pp
Profit attributable to equity AN A ERERR A N
shareholders of the Company JRE A% 35 ) 36,558 30,380 20%
Net profit margin Hli ] 2= 5% 4% +1 pp
Earnings before interest, taxes, FIBRALE - BLIE - ey
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) B 448 6 i ) 241 [ EBITDA 49,864 44,475 12%
EBITDA margin EBITDA%R 7% 6% +1 pp
Return on total assets AR ] R 2.6% 2.3% +0.3 pp
Financial Health Indicators B 5 DL Ha B
Cash and bank balances B4 M 8RR AT 45 R 323,112 313,489 3%
Net current assets BN EE R E 409,486 396,945 3%
Total assets B AR 1,391,151 1,332,788 4%
Total liabilities B fE A 142,184 160,336 -11%
Shareholders’ equity JBESRORE 25 1,247,728 1,169,580 7%
Return on shareholders’ equity JE SR 25 ] 3 2.9% 2.6% +0.3 pp
Current ratio (times) ) & (fF) 5.0 4.2 19%
Shareholders’ Return Indicators JBE 3 Il 3t Fi
Earnings per share — basic BREA - FEAR $0.18 $0.15 20%
Dividend per share (53113135 $0.12 $0.10 20%
Dividend payout PSS 67% 67% 0 pp
Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure BLE R B B AR Il
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BRI T Bla 19,533 (2,130) -1,017%
Capital expenditure — other assets A S — oA 2,005 4,302 -53%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$749,280,000, a decrease of 6% as compared with HK$800,343,000
of the year before. Despite the drop of revenue, a profit of
HK$35,043,000 was recorded for the year under review (2016/17: a
profit of HK$27,985,000).

GARMENT BUSINESS

Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited are
the two names that we use to operate our garment business. We
manufacture a wide variety of products that include men’s and ladies’
shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, T-shirts, jackets and knitted
outerwear, etc. Hong Kong is our Group’s headquarters that handles our
core garment businesses including manufacturing, trading and sourcing.
We have factories in China (Guigang and Panyu), Bangladesh and
Myanmar. Besides Hong Kong and places where we have factories, we
also have offices in China (Dongguan and Hangzhou). These offices not
only provide supports to our own factories, but also monitor and liaise
with our subcontractors and business partners around these areas.

Our core garment business was full of challenges for the year under
review. Though confronted by various unfavourable situations, we were
able to overcome them and increased our profit from operations by
36%. Through the hard working of our sales and production teams,
we managed to subdue the adverse effects caused by global political
and economical instability. Yet the purchasing power of some of our
clients had not regained their momentum and we were under great
pressure, on one hand to keep our selling prices competitive and on the
other to minimize our administration and operating costs. Nonetheless
the management strived to keep pace with the changing business
environment caused especially by the emerging trade wars worldwide.

Keen competitions, inefficiency of sewing workers, uneven spread
of orders, ever escalating manufacturing costs and lower garment
prices demanded by customers were but a few of the problems that
confronted our factories over the years. Last financial year was no
different. Our China factories operating under the names of Exquisite
Knitters (Guangzhou) Limited and Whampoa Garment Manufacturing
(Guigang) Co., Ltd., had recorded a loss for the year under review.
Besides those unfavourable factors mentioned, our China factories were
confronted with a drastic drop of sales orders from one of its long-term
customers. Although new customers had been found to replace some
of the production space, it took time for our sewing workers to cope
with the new working patterns thus affecting our productivity. The
management had tried to minimize the adverse effects by closing down
one of the factories in Guigang, eliminating a few non-profitable divisions,
monitoring closely the operation and manufactory costs as well as to
expand our sales activities in the domestic market. Results were positive.
Despite the foreseeable wage increase, the even tighter fuel control and
rising yarn and dyeing charges, the management is hopeful that next year
we could see better results for our China operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Our Bangladesh factory recorded a minor loss. The negative results
attributed to our selling prices were unable to catch up with the ever
increasing factory operating costs, and the lack of orders in some of
the months. Knowing it would be difficult to combat these problems,
our management hoped that through our perseverance in upgrading
our quality and strict compliance of industrial safety in our factory, we
could gain more of our customers’ confidence to place their orders to
Bangladesh. Hopefully in the next financial year, we could see positive
results.

Our factory in Myanmar — Dagon Talent Garment Limited, though still
recorded an operational loss in the year under review, had improved its
results significantly. Stable orders and improved efficiency of our sewing
workers were the main reasons for the improvement of our performance.
Minimum wage has increased by 33% since May 2018. Although we
could not recover this increase totally from our garment prices, we hope
that through the continual improvement of efficiency and steady orders,
we can further reduce its operational loss and hopefully to achieve a
breakeven result.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is a joint venture that owns several textiles related
companies in Wuxi, China (“Wuxi Group”). The core business of the Wuxi
Group is the production of medium range to high end yarns. The profit
shared by the Group for the year under review was HK$14,967,000
(2016/17: HK$11,497,000). The positive result attributed to two main
reasons: firstly the cotton we utilized were substantially purchased
from Xinjiang with improved quality and at lower prices, and secondly
the timely adjustments of the product mix in response to market
conditions. Factors that may affect Wuxi Group’s results in the next
financial year including: cotton prices have risen while yarn prices
have not increased in tandem, thus squeezing the profit margins; the
ongoing trade friction between China and the U.S. creates uncertainties
on business outlook; the undergoing project in Ethiopia might stretch
Wuxi Group’s financial resources and increase their financial costs. Last
but not least the upgrading of the factory is expected to enhance its
productivity, product development and quality assurance. Barring
unforeseen circumstances, the management expects next financial year
to be profitable but at a reduced rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group’s operations continued to be
mainly financed by the internal resources.

As at 31 March 2018, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$323,112,000 (2017: HK$313,489,000). As at 31
March 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any short term and long
term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and
bank balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars, Euros, Pounds Sterling or Renminbi, the Group may enter
into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables and
payables denominated in the above foreign currencies against the
exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant. As at 31
March 2018, the Group has forward foreign exchange contracts hedging
forecast transactions with net fair value of HK$2,353,000(liabilities) (2017:
HK$94,000(assets) and HK$48,000(liabilities)), recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

LAW AND REGULATIONS

Law and regulations in relation to workplace quality, product safety and
environmental performance may have a material effect on our Group’s
principal activities.

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that continued business success relies on the
full contribution and support of our employees. We are dedicated
to promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training, staff
promotion, transfer, and dismissal. All employees are assessed based on
their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of their nationality,
race, religion, gender, age or family status.

The Group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our
employees. We pledge full compliance in all occupational health and
safety legislations and we have implemented an effective and safe
working environment for our employees.

The Group complied with labour or other relevant legislations. We did not
identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation related to
workplace quality.

Product Safety

The Group places the highest importance on the welfare of its customers
globally, as well as on its broader societal and environmental impact. The
quality and safety of our products is a vital part of this.

All products are safe and fully adhere to international environmental and
safety standards. We did not identify any material non-compliance or
breach of legislation related to product safety.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Environmental Performance

The Group is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment
through reduced consumption of electrical power.

We are committed to upholding high environmental standards to fulffill
relevant requirements under applicable laws or ordinances during the
manufacturing and material disposal processes.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of
relevant standards, rules and regulations on air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous water, etc.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen and actively supports various charitable organisations and
causes. We encourage staff to join our “YGM Volunteer Team” and
participate in various charitable activities to help people in need,
demonstrating its corporate social responsibility and promoting the caring
culture in the society.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

An environmental, social and governance report will be published on
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Company’s website no later than three months after the publication of the
Company’s annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, operational results or growth prospects leading to a
divergence from expected or historical results. Key risk factors and
uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. In dealing with
these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group remains in touch with
our stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could become material in
the future.

Global Economy and Macro-economic Conditions

The global economic recovery has been weaker than expected with
uneven recovery in advanced economies. Downside risks have increased
due to economic pressures and geopolitical tensions such as slowing
growth in emerging markets and the instability in Middle East and Eastern
Europe.

The principal business activities of the Group is the manufacture and sale
of garments and textiles to the customers in Europe, North America and
Mainland China. The industries in which the Group operates are affected
by the economic conditions, consumer spending, contagious disease
outbreaks and currency environment in these regions. Any combination
of these factors or continuing adverse economic conditions in these
regions may adversely affect the Group’s financial position, potential
income, asset value and liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

The Group has taken a proactive approach to monitoring changes
in global economy and macro-economic conditions. Adequate risk
mitigation measures are in place and are constantly reviewed for
enhancement.

Currency Markets

The Group operates on a global basis and earns revenues, incurs costs
and make investments in a number of currencies. The Group’s financial
results are reported in Hong Kong dollars. The majority of reported
revenues are earned in non-Hong Kong currencies. Therefore the Hong
Kong dollar value of reported revenues, profits and cash flows may be
reduced as a result of unfavourable currency exchange rate movements.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. The details of the policy are set out in the paragraph of
“Liquidity and Financial Position”.

Impact of Local, National and International Regulations

Local business risks specific to individual countries and cities where the
Group operates could have a material impact on its financing conditions,
operating results and growth prospects.

The Group is, and may increasingly become, exposed to different and
changing political, social, legal, tax, regulatory and listing requirements
at the local, national and international level. New policies or measures
by governments, whether fiscal, tax or regulatory, may pose a risk to the
returns delivered by the Group’s business and may delay or prevent the
commercial operation of an individual business, with a resulting loss in
revenue and profit.

The Group has taken a proactive approach to monitoring changes in
government policies and legislation. Adequate risk mitigation measures
are in place and are constantly reviewed for enhancement.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associate and joint ventures, employed approximately 3,600
employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference to
employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund
scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

Fair and Open Competition

The Group promotes fair and open competition that aims to develop
long-term relationships with suppliers and subcontractors based on
mutual trust.

Public Interest and Accountability

The procurement from suppliers or services providers is conducted in a
manner consistent with the highest ethical standards. This helps assure
high quality products at all times to gain the confidence of customers,
suppliers and the public.

Procurement Procedures

The subcontracting and the purchase of goods are based solely on need,
quality and price. This ensures compliance with procurement policies and
fosters positive and open competition.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

Customer Services

The Group seeks to provide efficient and courteous customer service
to maintain customer satisfaction and co-operation. Customers have
access to information about the operation and development of the Group
through annual reports. The Group shall not make any misrepresentation,
exaggeration or overstatement.

Pricing Policies

The Group believes in the economic system of the free market, in which
price is determined by supply and demand. The Group also seeks to
provide customers with the highest quality products at fair prices which
allow the Group a reasonable profit in relation to the value provided.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no important event affecting the Group which has occurred since
the end of the reporting period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental of
properties. Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group, can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 3 to 4 and pages 5 to 11 of the Annual Report respectively.
This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK12
cents (2017: HK10 cents) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2018.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of section Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
was HK$391,737,000 (2017: HK$402,207,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$24,810,000 (2017: HK$20,675,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 (note 25(b)). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$47,000 (2017: HK$30,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESEREE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
financial year is as follows:

LEEP RO

A B B R R RF R AR A A
RO E R REE T

Percentage of the Group’s total

A 7 4 [ A
2018 2017
RN\ e S
Sales Purchases Sales  Purchases
aif BRI e TR
The largest customer wREF 17% 16%
Five largest customers in aggregate B KEF &% 44% 41%
The largest supplier i KL 7% 8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate KR & R 22% 28%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau (passed away on 27 March 2018)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Chan Suk Man

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

So Ying Woon, Alan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Lin Keping

Choi Ting Ki

Leung Hok Lim (retired on 20 September 2017)

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael (resigned on 2 January 2018)

So Stephen Hon Cheung (appointed on 20 September 2017)
Li Guangming (appointed on 2 January 2018)

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be
found in the Company’s website at www.ygm.com.hk under “Investor
Relation/Corporate Governance”.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) would like to
take this opportunity to express its gratitude to Mr. Leung Hok Lim
and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael for their valuable contribution to the
Company during their tenure of service.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

Article 96 of the Articles of Association provides that the Board shall
have power from time to time to appoint any person as a Director. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election,
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who
are to retire by rotation at such meeting. Mr. So Stephen Hon Cheung
and Mr. Li Guangming were appointed by the Board as independent
non-executive director on 20 September 2017 and 2 January 2018
respectively. Accordingly, their offices will expire at the AGM. Being
eligible, Mr. So and Mr. Li will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan
Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan will retire
from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 28
to the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model
Code”) and which were required to be entered in the register kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

W 2 By e A

R_FE-NE=ZA=Z+—H > AQA&#
5 R AR 2 B BN LR AR R BT T
N (FE RS g OB ) (T8 25 ] ) 56
XVER 2 W) 2 By ~ A B i 1y I {5 7
B A AR B SR R ) SEXVIR S 7 K83 ¥ - b
2% W) 34T @ I 58 oy AR e Sy ) (T A e
STHID) 2 B & AR o m) e g 2 i 2 HE
f KR A (B A 15 45 AR % 55 A 2 Ak R
FEBRAFBCE B 2 e d SR ) > i ZH
B O AR AR 5 R R B 3521k fr B 2 B R
2t KR

Number of ordinary shares

VI e By ¥ H

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of director Wk 4 [EUN 2 KL A v BERR HoAbpERE
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PR 7k 4= 486,102 8,678,465 = 0]
Chan Wing Kee B i A 8,589,624 319,691 - (i & (i
Chan Wing To B 7 I 10,073,389 - = () & (ii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel o 7 2% 6,089,244 250,000 3,604,415 0]
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley JE B A 4,535,816 524,000 = ()
Chan Suk Man BB SC 3,438,466 - S (i) & (ii)
So Ying Woon, Alan FREE 12,000 = = =
Lin Keping N S - S S
Choi Ting Ki B - - - -
So Stephen Hon Cheung BRI - - - -
Li Guangming 2 = = = =
Notes: Mt a#

i) 48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family Investment
Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing
To, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam
Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

(ii) 2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team International
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing
To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

() A 4k48,082,2400 A 24 @ 43 J5 FiChan
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests
In Shares” in respect of the directors, the following shareholder had
interests in 5% or more of the ordinary share of the Company in issue
as at 31 March 2018, according to the register of interests and short
positions required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

EX 38 9 8% Ve £

MoF— A=A+ —H o R L TH S
2 P53 HE 3 ) T 9 2 M A > AR A 5 O 9
S 3B6 ML AE B 2 IO HE 2 Bk A T
TR A A T B BAT IR 5 9% 5 D
i 2 BRI T

Number of Percentage of

ordinary ordinary shares

shares held in issue

Capacity FAHGBER AT ER

Name of shareholder JBE 3 44 A HE 25 PE Bty ¥ H JBe 4y e 4 b

Guangzhou Textiles Industry & &N B 4k L A 2 Beneficial owner 17,806,000 8.61%
Trade Holdings Ltd. EEERAH B adEa A (note)
(Kt 7E)

Note:  The shares were directly held by Yue Xiu Textiles Co., Ltd., a 100% owned

subsidiary of Guangzhou Textiles Industry & Trade Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst related party transactions in note 28(a) to the
financial statements.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the connected
transactions were entered into by the Group:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i)  conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression will
be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be
made by similar entities) or where there is no available comparison,
on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the independent
shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee
(the “Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 112 of the annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing
shareholder value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the financial year ended 31 March 2018, except for the deviation from
code provision A.4.1 of the Code, pursuant to which the non-executive
directors of the Company should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The non-executive directors of Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election requirements at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Articles 96 and 105 of the Company’s articles of
association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and
borrowings, accounting and dividends policies. The Board delegates
day-to-day operations of the Company to the management of the Group
and also instructs the management to implement the Board’s decisions
and resolutions. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Management Committee.

The Board comprises seven executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. The number of independent non-executive
directors represents at least one-third of the Board in accordance with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors
bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to provide
effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major decisions of
the Group.

During the year, Mr. Leung Hok Lim retired on 20 September 2017 and
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael resigned on 2 January 2018. The Board
appointed Mr. So Stephen Hon Cheung and Mr. Li Guangming to fill up
these vacancies immediately.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors as well as
relationships between them are set out in the section of “Directors and
Management”.

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee had held 4, 3, 3, 3 and 1
meetings respectively in the year under review.
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The attendance at the Board and respective Board committees meetings
held in the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

EHEARERZHONBE T - NF=4
= Bk AR P AT w2 W R Bk S
o

Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Management General
Board Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
*HE FHEHE  FMEHE  RAZHE HRENZHE  BOOREAE
Executive directors ik

Chan Sui Kau (oassed away on 27 March 2018) Wk (R = F— /==L HR ) 0/4 NA NA N/A N/A 04
Chan Wing Fui, Peter iz 44 NA 33 33 1 11
Chan Wing Kee Bkt 34 N/A 113 113 1 o
Chan Wing To BikiA 44 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1
Chan Suk Man L5 44 N/A N/A N/A 1 1
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel ik & 44 NA NA N/A N/A 11
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley JF 44 NA NA NA N/A 11
S0 Ying Woon, Alan 435 44 NA NA NA 17 17

Independent non-executive directors e e
Lin Keping SR 44 33 38 313 N/A 1
Choi Ting Ki igids 44 38 38 33 N/A 1N
So Stephen Hon Cheung (appointed on 20 September 2017) Bk (H - F—+ 44 1=+ HEE() 12 12 0/ o N/A 000
Li Guangming (appointed on 2 January 2018) ERR (R =F- N HEFE) n 1 000 00 N/A 00
Leung Hok Lim (fefired on 20 September 2017) RER R -F—LTNA A HER) 1 1 1 1 N/A 1
Sz6 Cho Cheung, Michael (esigned on 2 anuary 2018) R K =F-NE-AZ ) 113 02 23 23 N/A on

The 2017 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held on 20 September
2017, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee, the members of Remuneration Committee
and the external auditor of the Company, attended the AGM to answer
questions raised by shareholders. Proceedings of annual general meeting
are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company follows
good corporate governance practices. Voting results were posted on the
Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites on the day of the AGM.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the
Company in writing his independence from the Company in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee and the Board considered that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent with reference
to Rule 3.13.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is committed to ensure that a good corporate governance
framework and practices are established within the Group. The Board is
responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance functions
as required under code provision D.3.1 of the Code which are set out
below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(8) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(6) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and the
Managing Director of the Company is Mr. Chan Wing Kee. The roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the Company
are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies and
overall business development planning. The Managing Director’s duty
is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the Board level is to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
directors. The Company provides tailored induction programme to
new director upon his appointment to equip him with the appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and to ensure
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
relevant law and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company circulates materials relating to the
legislative and regulatory environment to the directors on a regular
basis for their information. The Company also encourages Directors to
attend relevant seminars, conferences or forums to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the year, all directors participated in
continuous professional development in compliance with code provision
A.6.5 of the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal of an
insurance policy on directors’ and officers’ liability to ensure our directors
and senior management are protected from any liability arising from the
performance of their duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, each with mandate to oversee particular aspects of the
affairs of the Company. Each of these four Board committees is set up
with written terms of reference. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
expenses of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Choi Ting Ki, Mr. So
Stephen Hon Cheung and Mr. Li Guangming. It is chaired by Mr. So
Stephen Hon Cheung. The members’ attendance to the Audit Committee
meeting is listed out on page 19.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s
internal control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee has, inter
alia, reviewed and discussed with management and the external auditor
the interim and annual results with a view to ensuring that the Group’s
financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Audit Committee has
met with external auditor twice a year, in the absence of management,
to discuss any issues arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
independence and quality of work of KPMG and has recommended to
the Board to re-appoint KPMG as auditor for the year ending 31 March
2019.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different from
that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation presented
by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Choi Ting Ki, Mr. So
Stephen Hon Cheung and Mr. Li Guangming. It is chaired by Mr. Lin
Keping. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration Committee
meeting is listed out on page 19.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments offered
are appropriate given the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive and
sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive directors, namely
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Choi Ting Ki, Mr. So
Stephen Hon Cheung and Mr. Li Guangming. It is chaired by Mr. Choi
Ting Ki. The members’ attendance to the Nomination Committee meeting
is listed out on page 19.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-election of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the managing
director. The Nomination Committee will consider the suitability of the
candidate on the basis of his professional qualification, skills, experience
and background.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises four executive directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Kee, Ms. Chan Suk
Man and Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan. It is chaired by Mr. Chan Wing Fui,
Peter. The members’ attendance to the Risk Management Committee
meeting is listed out on page 19.

The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the overall design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and the internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related matters.
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EMOLUMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises 7 individuals. Details of
backgrounds and qualifications of each senior executive are set out in the
section of “Directors and Management”.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 the emoluments of the senior
management of the Group fell within the following bands:

RPN HM &

AEBERBERANBGIETZA N L - KRBT
ANEEFRREERNTEELEMAL |

WEZZ-NFE=EHA=+—HILFEERN > £E
M AR BN B R e AP R A R

Number of senior executives

FHATB B H

Emoluments 4
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 05 7t 21,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 #% 7t 22,000,000 7C 6
7

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 30 to 36.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit
work of the Group amounted to HK$1,657,000 (2017: HK$1,979,000),
of which a sum of HK$1,604,000 (2017: HK$1,926,000) was paid or
payable to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor,
KPMG and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory audit and
non-audit were HK$1,604,000 (2017: HK$1,926,000) and HK$418,000
(2017: HK$444,000) respectively. The non-audit services principally
comprise tax and internal control review services provided to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year
under review.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has an overall responsibility for the risk management
framework, and for determining the significant risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s objectives. Audit Committee is delegated with
overseeing the effectiveness of internal control and risk management,
while management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems. The Risk Management Committee is
responsible for coordinating risk management activities, and to report at
least annually to the Board. However, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our approach to manage risks involves identification and assessment
of principal risks from the external and internal environments at different
organisation levels. The assessment considers the changes in nature and
extent of significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment. Action plans have been
developed and risk ownership has been assigned for each key principal
risk. The risk owners coordinate the mitigation measures to ensure proper
implementation of these action plans. The process is closely monitored
by the Risk Management Committee.

Taken into consideration the principal risks and mitigation actions, the
Board believes that the Company has the ability to respond to any such
changes in our business and the external environment, and considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control system was
effective and adequate.

Regarding the disclosure of inside information, the Board had
implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information so that potential inside information
can be promptly identified and escalated up for deciding whether an
announcement should be made in order to ensure compliance with
the continuous obligations under the Listing Rules and the statutory
obligation to disclose information under the SFO.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

During the year under review, the Board has engaged an external
consultant to perform internal audit services. The external consultant has
assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of internal
controls system for certain selected processes. The assessment results
and proposed improvement opportunities were discussed and agreed
with Management and were reported to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the
Vice Chairman on governance matters and also facilitates the induction
and professional development of directors. The Company Secretary
also keeps proper records of all Board and Committee meetings. The
biography of the Company Secretary is set out on page 29. The
Company Secretary has undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”)

Article 67 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Ordinance. According to section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance, the directors of the Company are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the request for
a general meeting must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company or in electronic form at cs_info@ygm.com.hk
and must be authenticated by the requisitionist(s). The directors must
call a general meeting within 21 days after the date of the receipt of the
requests to do so. The meeting called must be held on a date not more
than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
22 Tai Yau Street

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-Mail: cs_info@ygm.com.hk
Telephone: (852) 2327 5111
Facsimile: (852) 2352 2286

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

No amendments are made to the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAE

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 72, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same
year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director in 1971 and
1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board of directors in 1987.
Mr. Chan is at present the Chairman of the board of directors and has
held directorships in a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan
was the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading Limited from
2010 to 2015, and is at present the executive director of YGM Trading
Limited. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in garment manufacturing
and marketing in the Far East and the USA.

Chan Wing Kee, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 71, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed as Director in 1977 and
Managing Director in 1987. He is also an Executive Director of YGM
Trading Limited; Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited, China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corporation Limited and Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited.
Mr. Chan has participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and
Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member
of The 10th, 11th and 12th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of
China, Ex-member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council
of Macau Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile
Advisory Board of Hong Kong; Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory
Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor
of Hong Kong Affairs.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 67, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed as
Executive Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987.
Mr. Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from the
University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive experience in the
textile and garment business.

Chan Suk Man, MSc

Aged 70, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Executive Director in 1993.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

Aged 70, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor's degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group from
1974 to 1988 and has been an Executive Director since 1977. Mr. Chan
was the Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987 to 2006
and the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from 2006 to
2010. He was the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of YGM
Trading Limited from 2010 and was re-designated as the Chairman of
board of directors of YGM Trading Limited in September 2015. Mr. Chan
has been the Chairman of the board of directors of Crater Gold Mining
Limited, whose shares are listed on Australian Securities Exchange, since
2013.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, BBS, JP

Madam Chan joined the Group in 1973 and appointed as the Director
in 19883. She is also the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of YGM
Trading Limited. Madam Chan, aged 67, has extensive experience of
management in the garment retail and wholesale business. She is a
Member of Advisory Group on Implementation of Fashion Initiatives
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”), a Member of
Fashion Industry Training Advisory Committee of HKSAR, a Council
Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC”),
the Chairman of Staff & Finance Committee of HKTDC, the Executive
Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong, the Vice President of the Guangdong Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Council Member of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She received a Bachelor's degree from
Nottingham Trent University, the United Kingdom in 1973.

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 68, Mr. So received a Bachelor's degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in 2005

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Lin Keping

Aged 79, Mr. Lin has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a
member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the Eighth
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal
and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Choi Ting Ki

Aged 63, is a felow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In 1978, Mr. Choi graduated from the Department of
Accounting of the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He joined KPMG in the same year and has
held various positions, including Partner of the audit department of KPMG
Hong Kong Office, Managing Partner of KPMG Shanghai Office, Senior
Partner of KPMG Huazhen Shanghai Office as well as Senior Partner
of KPMG Huazhen in Eastern and Western China. Mr. Choi retired
from KPMG Huazhen in April 2010. Mr. Choi has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2012. Mr. Choi
is also an Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAE

So Stephen Hon Cheung

Aged 62, has been a director of an accounting firm T.M Ho, So &
Leung CPA Limited since 2003. Currently, he is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Ying Kee Tea House Group Limited
(stock code: 8241). He has extensive experience in the commercial
sector of manufacturing, wholesale and trading and in public practice
working for various companies in Hong Kong, China and Canada. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University of British
Columbia, Canada. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and a member of the Society of Certified
Management Accountants of Canada. Mr. So has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company and YGM Trading Limited
(stock code: 375) since September 2017, Teamway International Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1239) since August 2017, Pinestone
Capital Limited (stock code: 804) since May 2015 and PINE Technology
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1079) since September 2002, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. So was
an independent non-executive director of Milan Station Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1150) from May 2011 to February 2017, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Li Guangming

Aged 66, Mr. Li was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in January 2018. He was appointed as
deputy chief of No. 1 Cotton Textile Factory of Wuxi City in July 1984
and chief of factory in February 1991. He has held various positions
in Wuxi City Guolian Development (Group) Company Limited and its
subsidiaries. Among other things, he was appointed as the general
manager of Wuxi Guolian Textile Group Company Limited (now known
as Wuxi No.1 Cotton Textile Group Company Limited) in October 2005,
and subsequently served as the chairman of its board until December
2014. He had also held various management roles in Wuxi No. 1 Cotton
Investment Co., Ltd. (a joint venture held as to 49% by the Company) and
its subsidiaries up to June 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Wuxi Professional
University (now known as Jiangnan University) and was a member
of the Standing Committee of Wuxi Municipal People’s Congress of
the People’s Republic of China. He also has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited (stock code: 375) since
January 2018, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ relationship with other Directors, senior management,
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company

Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan
Suk Ling, Shirley are siblings.

Mr. Chan Wing Kee, Mr. Chan Wing To and Madam Chan Suk Man are
siblings. They are also the cousins of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley. Madam Chan
Suk Man is the wife of Mr. Lau Shing Choy.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors do not have any relationship
with other Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 70, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’'s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of Hong
Kong Knitters Limited.

Senoussi, Serge

Aged 53, is the Managing Director of Lavender Garment Limited and the
General Manager of liaison office in Bangladesh. Mr. Senoussi obtained
a Master’s degree in Econometrics in 1986 and a diploma in Scientific
Management Methods in 1987 from the University of Paris X Nanterre,
France. He joined the Company in 1993 to develop the business in
Bangladesh.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 60, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of
Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 56, Ms. Chui is the General Manager of Sales Department.
Ms. Chui joined the Group in 1994, and has over 30 years’ managerial
experience in fashion business. She was awarded Master of Business
Administration (Fashion Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004.

Yung Chor Yin, Margaret

Aged 54, is the General Manager of Sales Department and received
a Bachelor’'s degree from RMIT University and a Master’'s degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
joined the Company in 1985.

Yip Chung On

Aged 55, Mr. Yip is the General Manager of Sales Department. Mr. Yip
joined the Company in 1982, and was promoted to Sales Manager in
1989. With wide range of both woven and knit experience in garment
sourcing and merchandizing, he was appointed as General Manager in
2005.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 52, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Group. She joined the Group in 2000 and has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, treasury and company secretarial work. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZBAE RS

KpMG!

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 37 to 110, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2018, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B M B BAT R S

ASSESSING IMPAIRMENT OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Al W B B 3t ¥ DAL

Refer to note 12(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(k).

ERM A B REM 1200 R G 7 B 1(k) -

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
B A it 2

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT
EA IR HE LY S

In view of the loss sustained by a manufacturing unit of the
Group during the current year, management considered
that indicators of potential impairment of plant and
equipment used by this manufacturing unit existed as at 31
March 2018.

By BEMEH RS EH AR AEE NS ER
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In assessing whether impairment existed at the reporting
date, management determined the recoverable amount of
the smallest cash generating unit (“‘CGU”) to which these
assets were allocated. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
the greater of its value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the related assets.
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In order to determine the recoverable amount of the
CGU for which an indicator of impairment was identified,
management prepared an value in use calculation using a
discounted cash flow forecast.
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The discounted cash flow forecast used to assess potential
impairment was based on a number of assumptions which
required the exercise of significant management judgement,
in particular in estimating future revenue and cost of direct
materials, staff costs and fixed costs and the discount rate
applied.
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of plant and
equipment included the following:
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e challenging the Group’s impairment assessment

model, which included assessing the impairment
indicators identified by management, the identification
of CGU and the allocation of assets to this CGU
and assessing the impairment assessment models
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
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e challenging the key assumptions adopted by

management in the preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecast by comparing the most significant inputs
in the discounted cash flow forecast, including future
revenue and cost of direct materials, staff costs and
fixed costs, with the historical performance and the
most recent financial budget approved by the board
of directors, industry reports and other available third
party information;
8 S RE A A G B B A U TR AR S 2 B
1B % by B > Sl R IR SR 4 R TE I P e
R - AR R ARG M E M BRA - B TR
B[] 5 B A~ BRLJRE R SR B T de T 0 o HE S e AL
BT - TS MM =7 HENE
A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B M % BAT R S

ASSESSING IMPAIRMENT OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Al W B B 3t ¥ DAL

Refer to note 12(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(k).

FERH A RE M 1200 R &7 B A1 (k) -

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
B A 2

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT
FA 0 st Ju oy B B %4 5

We identified assessing impairment of plant and equipment
as a key audit matter because of the potential significance
of any impairment charge to the results of the Group for
the year and because forecasting future cash flows can be
inherently subjective and requires significant management
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.

FAM WAl DS B kA 04 B(EL B A B R R A
MATAT R ES BEMAFEEN XS AEBENEE
PE > b R AR B B U B0 T B AT LR T B R e
B B R K K A B o B b AT B8 R R BR - T
B JE I mT RE A B i L o

e comparing the key assumptions included in

the discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management in the prior year with the current year’'s
performance to assess the accuracy of the prior year’s
forecast and making enquiries of management as to
the reasons for any significant variations identified and
whether these had been considered in the current
discounted cash flow forecast;
LA AT 4F B4 IR A A R G B B <6 U TR I T AR
2 B B R o BRLARS AF Y 3R B AR BL R DL RE A
T 4F B2 Y 70 2 5 Y A - N A ) R B AT AT K
72 SLIY JE R DA R AR 4F B 2 2R 3 B 4 O TR I LR
HTOFEZEHEE

e  assessing the discount rate applied in the discounted
cash flow forecast by referencing to available financial
information of other listed companies in the same
industry and considering region and CGU specific risk
premiums; and
2 AEATHEN H AL BT A AR M AR B
A 1 FH AE Bl B B 48 i TR0 Y R B R IR B R
I DL T B 4 AR R0 0 LB ECRR U &

° performing a sensitivity analysis of the discount rate,
selling prices, cost of direct materials and staff costs
growth rates in the discounted cash flow forecast and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
charge for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias.

S 4 B B 4 U TR R B B R - B E AR - H
FEREA K B TR A 18 = 0 47 SO 0 A - I
75 B8 T A5 45 s A AR B (R 1A BT A ARG S B

DA Be 2 15 A A AT BF 52 B A T O i B o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B M B BAT R S

ASSESSING POTENTIAL IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

WA £ A SR 2 0 TR A DR

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(k).

RS ERZEM A 16 R &7l B 41 (k) »

THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
B A it 2

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT
EA IR HE LY S

The carrying value of the Group’s interests in joint ventures
amounted to HK$571,043,000 as at 31 March 2018. The
principal activities of the joint ventures are manufacturing
and sale of garments and textiles. Given the thin margin
earned by the joint ventures and the fluctuation of the price
of the major raw material cotton in recent years which have
had a significant impact on the gross profit, management
considered that indicators of potential impairment of
interests in joint ventures existed as at 31 March 2018.
BE_F-NA\F=ZH=1+—H,  BHEBERGECEHE
4 I R THT (B £5571,043,000% 7C « &M% TEEY
& R KB AR B BT Ak o 8 A H MO Y R R B £
BIEM B EER RS H BN EEEREE > B
FoE-NEZHA=Z+—H  EHERL GBS LN
HAFTEWET R -

In assessing whether there was any impairment of the
carrying value of the interests in joint ventures, management
determined the recoverable amounts based on the fair value
less costs of disposal model by considering the fair values
of the key underlying assets of the joint ventures, which
included land use rights, buildings and machinery and
equipment.

TE 7T Al & 8 AR SERE &5 1O IR TET (8 2 & A7 78 b (IR >
BEBEECETEEEN L FEME  HhaHE i
i FARE ~ M R Rl o 3 LA B (B B0 B A
B i AT U] A o

Assessing the fair value of these assets involves significant
management judgement, particularly in determining
asset-specific adjustment factors and the choice of market
comparable transactions.

FEAG %S B E AP EAE W L L E R O H B - L
HREMREEREMBERER BN LY -

We identified assessing potential impairment of interests
in joint ventures as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing the key impairment assumptions
involves a significant degree of management judgement
which may affect both the carrying value of the Group’s
interests in joint ventures as well as any impairment charge
for the year.

FoAM AL G A FERE R VB W E Y 5 B S
o W5 HB G MR R M E R B - T H A
T BB AR 5V M AR KRR BE b0 B R B > o]
RE B BAEENGE B ERMELS IR [ KA F

¥ 9 1 R

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
interests in joint ventures included the following:

A TE G AL BB B ER A BER - R T LN FE
(50

e assessing the appropriateness of using the fair
value less costs of disposal model as the basis for
determining the recoverable amounts and evaluating
the mathematical accuracy of the model used to
estimate the fair value less costs of disposal;

FEAR DA 78 8 B R AS B8 A B i AT i [
SEMERESBEE > D E AEMNE AT H
LR At o N = W o Nl R0 9

* involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in comparing the fair values of the joint ventures’ land
use rights, buildings and machinery and equipment,
as assessed by management, with our independently
formed market expectations with reference to the
market transaction prices or replacement cost for
comparable assets adjusted for certain asset-specific
adjustment factors, including the physical condition of
the assets, the dates of the reference transactions and
the anticipated remaining useful life; and
ZRL BAM Y R AR AL B A o B B FRAM R A B
BEAAEZ LR BT RS RS
A A o BLFRAM 2 B T AT HO B A T 5 5
6 BCEE E A Sl AR AR A R E O R R R AR
BEPABEEENEBEI - 28500 H B
eI B0 R G R BT BR - A T A B B S Tl 4 Y
HAH W 5 &

e assessing the relevant taxation implications in
Mainland China where the joint ventures operate upon
disposal of land use rights, buildings and machinery
and equipment of the joint ventures with reference
to the relevant prevailing tax regulations in Mainland
China.

S 4 A S8 I AE b b ) R o A R B4 T B
el > FPAE G AR ZER BB LR - BT
i B %A IR T 5 3R BB R B o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZBAE RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

ﬁgﬂ%%%&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%m

R AR AR o A E B TR
FEHRANETEL - HAREEE S MR E K
T A B A% B o

FAM B A5 B B R A0 B ORI b S
B A IR AN 5% S H AR BB SR AT TR N

BB A o

&5 BAM B &R A MBS ORI B EE > AT EAE
e B AR ARG - B EAMAEE
e ARG M B MR B MAEFRBES T
AL FR) 15 LA A B R 1K B 0L A A R B R
Bz B 1% L o

FERBME AT TAE > R R H A
SATEEREREE > RMTEREZFH -
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Wl R AR BAE -
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M HAR - RS MBS IR BEEE AT
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155 BLOR A - Sl ) B G FAM B S A A% BT ¥R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B M B BAT R S

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

o LR R KB PR o (EOR BE AR RS 1 IR
b R Q) AT B A R > AR B O ER R BRAL
A7 AE 5 S RE S8 3 o 8 it BR A WT DL P R B Rk
G - G SR 2T A T R S AR R A T fiE
B IV AR O B AR P A
A RE TR IR TE I R ) S ot R T A R

TEMR B (i e ah MR AT Rt AR b > K
T T R > R T HEMBEREE -
IR

sl 3] R Ay b R R B R A B
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PUAT A AT A 7 DA ME B 7 L L By o DA B B
7E R AE W FERRE > ERARME R
o RN IKFE T REW R - i - F
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZBAE RS

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RS E R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—)/\F=ZA=+—8ItFE (L&)

2018 2017
RN\ e S ki
Note $°000 $'000
MtaE T TT
Revenue WA 3 & 11 749,280 800,343
Cost of sales P A (611,731) (661,036)
Gross profit ey 137,549 139,307
Other income FHoAt i i 4 10,866 11,016
Selling and distribution expenses P Kt A (53,596) (57,248)
Administrative expenses T A (62,373) (64,631)
Other operating expenses HAth 5825 2 (15,350) (15,881)
Profit from operations syl 17,096 12,563
Finance costs Pl A 5(a) (2,553) 2,719
Share of profits of joint ventures JEAG A8 A 2800 A 14,967 11,497
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary S — PR A F i 14(b) - 12,838
Impairment loss on plant and equipment TS Ko 3 A el (s 48 12(f) (4,758) (12,304)
Net valuation gains on investment properties BB AL I TR A 12(a) 17,545 12,369
Profit before taxation B BE i %t A 5 42,297 34,244
Income tax REE) 6(a) (7,254) (6,259)
Profit for the year ARAR B i A 35,043 27,985
Attributable to: MR S
Equity shareholders of the Company AN T AERR A N 36,558 30,380
Non-controlling interests FEHE B B AR R 4 (1,515) (2,395)
Profit for the year AT BE i ) 35,043 27,985
Earnings per share 5 B EA
Basic and diluted FEA R i 10 $0.18 $0.15

JRE A AR &) O HE B A AR 4E BE B RE A
# R M 5E25(b) o 43 E 110 E 1Y Kl 31 B
A B FE 2 — B -

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year are set out in note 25(b). The notes on pages 43
to 110 form part of these financial statements.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED = J1 8K 45 B4 w)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmRkEMER KSR

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-F N\FZAZ+—BLEE LB T

2018 2017
RN\ TR LA
Note $°000 $'000
Ktz T T
Profit for the year AN AE B %k A 35,043 27,985
Other comprehensive income A A B H A 2 i K 3%
for the year (after tax and (FBRBEIE B 4 Bk 4% )
reclassification adjustments) 9
Items that are or may be reclassified A A AT BE
subsequently to profit or loss: FER A HEE G IIEA
Exchange differences on translation of: e 58, 75 4 -
— financial statements of - BB
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong WA Ji 2 ) B0 R e 10,154 (7,584)
— share of joint ventures’ net assets — R AL
HEAEEEFE 55,618 (33,012)
65,772 (40,596)
Release of exchange reserve to profit or loss 5 &4 — [ 8 2\ =] IHE
upon deregistration of a subsidiary ] A EHHE SO AR 14(0) = (12,838)
Available-for-sale securities: Al kR
net movement in 1 A ot A 5 B VR R
the investment revaluation reserve (1,370) 1,637
Cash flow hedges: BRI SRl
net movement in the hedging reserve S Yo ft A 585 1 VR (2,255) 551
Other comprehensive income for the year  ~ AMREHMb S wes 62147 (51,246)_
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 Ji 4 Thi U 25 48 7 97,190 (23,261)
Attributable to: R 358 S Y
Equity shareholders of the Company RN E IERERR A A 98,823 (20,720)
Non-controlling interests IEHE e I SRR 25 (1,633) (2,541)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7 4F Ji§ 4 1hi Wi 25 48 71 97,190 (23,261)

The notes on pages 43 to 110 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B %R I R

At 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REE-NF=ZA=+—8 (L&)

2018 2017
R )\ T
Note $’000 $°000
Mzt T For
Non-current assets JeUi By
Investment properties WEWHE 12 240,556 220,579
Other property, plant and equipment HAZE ~ B ekt 12 58,223 65,146
Interest in leasehold land held for FRESHE Y
own use under operating leases H A E - Hh A 2 12 1,438 1,353
300,217 287,078
Intangible assets Y E 13 3,080 3,175
Interest in an associate —BhE A MR 15 - =
Interests in joint ventures B 16 571,043 513,385
Other financial assets HoAth 4 A 7 17 4,611 5,731
Deferred tax assets R SRl T 23(b)(ii) 271 1,754
879,222 811,123
Current assets TR
Inventories & 18 68,686 68,168
Trade and other receivables JREMAC R B A R WSk 19 120,000 138,839
Current tax recoverable AT ] A HA R IE 23(a) 131 1,169
Cash at bank and in hand SRATA A S B 4 20(a) 323,112 313,489
511,929 521,665
Current liabilities b RER
Trade and other payables JREAST R 2 B At B A5) 35 21 86,407 105,568
Current tax payable JEAT A AR IR 23(a) 16,036 19,152
i 102,443 124,720 _
Netcurrentassets i¥@s@E 409,486 396,945
Total assets less current liabilities Y A B B A 1,288,708 1,208,068
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e Bk &

At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W= N\F=A=+—8 (L&)

2018 2017
R )\ —FE— A
Note $°000 $'000
Bzt Fr T
Non-current liabilities EIRT U RER -
Provision for long service payments MRS S 24 22,728 20,407
Deferred tax liabilities I JE ol T £ 23(b)(ii) 17,013 15,209
oo eeeeiiiieiiecececieiieiiiieciecoeoooooo.o. .. IR 39741 . 35,616
NET ASSETS e 1,248,967 1,172,452
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BN B ik i
Share capital i@ 25(c) 208,418 208,418
Reserves fitth 1,039,310 961,162
Total equity attributable to JHE 358 B AR A )
equity shareholders of the Company BEREF AT N\ B2 A0 A 1,247,728 1,169,580
Non-controlling interests Jed BB O 2% 1,239 2,872
TOTAL EQUITY Bl A5 B 1,248,967 1,172,452

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June  #EH &L ~F— /\4FNH .+t H B MR #%

2018. REREME EBIARE -

Chan Wing Fui, Peter Chan Wing Kee BiE Ak &= Bt A& AL

Chairman Managing Director FE B H A

The notes on pages 43 to 110 form part of these financial statements. 43 F110E WY B 5 8 A BA TS e e 2 — 4y o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEm B PR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ T )/\F=ZA=1+—BLFE (K&Emi)

Land and
Goodwill  Investment buildings Non-
Share  Exchange  arisingon  revaluation  revaluation Hedging Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserve  consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Sk Bt #E bERME FBR

Wk W ARZWE WA TREE MWRE GRRB Rewd it LT
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 7 7r 7r 7 7 7r 7 7r 7 7

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
Note 25(c) 25(a)f) 25(0)) 25(0)i) 25(0)fv) 25(d1)
(it (et (Wit izt Wizt (Wt
73 256) 256)) 25601 25)1i) 25 2201
Balance at RN
1 April 2016 LR iPA 208418 121,832 (42,174) (1,331) 31,870 (651) 7,236 885,675 1,210,975 6,084 1,217,659
Changes in equity  4F %% :
for the year:
Prftortheyear A LEEAY - - - - - - S N I
Other comprehensive {2 s
income 9 - (63,288 - 1,637 - 551 - - (51,100) (146) (61,246)
Total comprehensive 2 s 44
income - (63,288 - 1,637 - 551 - 30,380 (20,720) [2.541) (23,261)

Diidends paidto B ft £ A
non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - (12n) (121

Dividends approved .t
inrespectofthe  E—EEHKE
previous year 25(0)(i) - - - - - - - (20,675) (20,675) - (20,675)

Balance at R
31 March and ZHE-HE
1 April 2017 LR PA 208418 68,544 (42,174) 306 31,870 - 7236 895,380 1,169,580 2812 1,172,452

Changes in equity 4 Jyii%%H :

for the year:

Profit for the year A Al - - - - - - - 36,558 36,558 (1,515) 35,043
Other comprehensive J1 2 i

income 9 = 65,890 = (1370) = (2.255) = = 62265 (119) 62,147

Total comprenensive 4 it 4%
income - 66,890 - (1,370) - (2,259) - 36,558 98,823 (1,633) 97,190

Dividends approved ~ #iEB
inrespectofthe  E—EEHKE
previous year 25(0)i) - - - - - - - (20,679) (20,679) - (20,675)

Balance at RE%- N

HMach2018  ZJI= B2k WS MM @14 (064 31810 0259 2% oM 12418 129 120897
The notes on pages 43 to 110 form part of these financial statements. FABH EA110E 1Y B 5 B A BA B 3k 2 — HB 4 ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HERETRER

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_T\F=A=t+—BIEFE WETsH)

2018 2017
ZE2-N\E “xF -t
Note $°000 $’000
B EE T T
Operating activities B )
Cash generated from/(used in) operations R
pis, () Bl 20(b) 19,533 (2,130)
Tax paid L AT ol I (7,166) (3,524)
Net cash generated from/ H8 295 W
(used in) operating activities Bt (B H) BLA B 12367 (5,654)
Investing activities £ gnd ]
Payment for the purchase of Wi B oA 2 -
other property, plant and equipment W7 R AR A 3 (2,005) (4,302)
Proceeds from disposals of A H At 2 -
other property, plant and equipment W = Mo % At P 5 3 TE 4,990 6,207
Proceeds from disposal of B R Y 2E T AR
investment properties 12(c) - 20,180
Interest received EYEIPSS 1,091 956
Proceeds received upon settlement Sl &
of consideration receivable in — Wi T 2 ME AR A
respect of disposal of a subsidiary = 4,140
Dividends received from a joint venture Bl —HECEZIKE 12,926 6,195
Dividends received from equity securities B i R R 25 2 S 517 486
Increase in restricted bank deposits Z PR $RAT A7 3K (4,360) -
Net cash generated from B 3% h 9 14 B & 5
investing activities 13,159 33,862
Financing activities :§gng ]
Interest paid A FLE (2,410) (2,729
Dividends paid to AT A LS F A R A B
equity shareholders of the Company (20,675) (20,675)
Dividends paid to B AN I 42 R SR S
non-controlling interests = (1,271)
Net cash used in T ) 9 B A
. financing activites ... ......_._.._.._.........._._._._(208) (24,675)_
Net increase in B4 B B4 5500 B m -8
cash and cash equivalents 2,441 3,533
Cash and cash equivalents RAER 2 B4 B BL A%
at the beginning of the year 313,489 311,644
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  #h ¥ 5 %% & B 2 55 2% 2,822 (1,688)
Cash and cash equivalents AR Z B4 R BL &S
at the end of the year 20(a) 318,752 313,489

The notes on pages 43 to 110 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE T \F=ZHA=T—"HILFE (LE&xit)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in an associate and
joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(g));

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale securities
(see note 1(g)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

(a)

(b)

R
3 1 2% W)

A B B 3R T 1% B A s R RO 8 A T
A9 2 R s B s i ot YR DD (1 A s A s
W MR ) o LA BT A AR B s B
BoH WA (g st (FEEs
K ]) R FEARZ e RE
W O TG 91 22 K T A Y o AR B B AR O
HETEBEGLH A RAR GEZR L
LA (T BT BRI 2 %8 45 8 B - A
LERAz EEGFIECEBEN T -

A AR g OB TR KB RT
BB SR R AL A e
A AR T 4R AR A - AR
BUAT Bt 1 & w30 T4 81 00 08 T b 46 %
J&& P 4 J 2 AT AT i IBOR E  T S R R%
S EHS R 2 R SR B EE2 o

S 5 8 o0 1y g RO

WE_F—/\F=ZA=+—HILFEENE
AWM > WARA L ) L H M E A R (5
MR [ AR ) B A 5L IR — W8 A ®) %
aE e

A B B ik 2 R AR R R S A S v A R M
O E R R A B R 4 T SOt
Z G BUR AR RIER S

- HEWE(ZHEME1()

- OEBFEATHEEEEZ M T A
(ZBI 1) 5 K

- MASEITE (Z2BEMER) -

iz N8 A Vi B S 2 o U A R ) B RS e R TR
TE S A BB G RE S A
RAB R > %% B - Ah 5 R R 2 a5t
BRMER > IR F B EF - A
W ts B S M A A o B R M B IR T (E
an S 2R RE A BE O AE HoAh s R AR > H 4%
KR E R B M AEA BB W N A S B
B A R 2R PR RGBS SR AT A B A
SR ER o

% S G R AR B R R A AT A o B R
CRINES S UEAS-2 3R IR NS 2
BETE AL Fh 5 R W WERE o W R % TH ' R
CRHIVEN &2 - RivE Fup Cl IR -UEe)
IBH 1) 2 B A SR D4R I e e R o

B LT S I T A 0 S o U I
1 H T A € 368 I 85 Wk A R R B e K
B > DAl ah Al E R R 2 E BRI Z R/
A A2 o B TR B RE29 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

@CE

ZNF=ZA=+—HILFE LETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

4 et goR (81)

(c) W) 2 7 e Jk: ¢ I JBe S At 2

W I 2> B o A B T BT HE ) 2 ET R o AR AR
W A A 2 BT SRS A TR I E A
5 W) 2 [n] i K AR g 4 T O 1 RE LAY B
o] 3 A QA SR B 2 H W o W R E
ASE R A % S MR (7% T8 (A S 1
A 5 B R ARG B o

T B A FI K > AR IER 2 S F R
HEER &L A RRALGSMBEWREN -
EEAEAERM 2458 X hB &R
B DA HE A W OR B A o 3 A A
B S BRI MR - SR RIS
v 7B A 4 oK 5 B MG 4R B 1K O o B OR A 8
W 2 A I > fE S L BRI Y A R IR TR
BUAE B o

I e B R i - B JR AR WD R R 4R
A — 6 Ja 2 ) 4 i K% A R R A 4R
A A B % 45 HE 4 19 FR A (R A T AR A
R A A S 1 8 0 ) 5% 45 M 4 A 4 ST
A A AR E R - TR WEH
B OF o S T AT A8 A LA PR (O A T AR
Ox ) AT L A A w AT AT R AR
R A

I 12 I B SR HE 4 7 45 G WP 50K 00 3% 1) A 4
N o B A8 B A 0N R TR RE R R #5 4 BH
2H o I HE B I A 25 T A AN SR B AR R
GITE 45 G 18 1 R K6 48 ai S Ho A 2 T R
ﬁn%@lﬁ JiT 2 50 1 AR A H8 T 4 AR R A T U
25 AR o YO I A I B R RORE 2% R AR
El B RERE A AR AR -

WAL — M E A I RE L A E) o
A M 25 P o ME > JH DLRE £ 23S 5 A MR > T
TE £ HE 2 T DA 3R o 42 B R % I 8 B i
RSB SR A A B A E) o HR
A W g o R TR R

AR T O 2 — W 2 W] R £ o HE - L
A R % B TR 4 DM AR AR o I 4R
At N T R B A WA BB 1R o R 5 B L %
HIT B T8 2 ) 42 o HE BT DR B A9 A T R
gt B DA - f5F (e e o T A% 4 R BB A
U LA S {5 (L Tfe E’Jééﬁ'ﬂéiz (2 B B 5E
1(e)) B > W E - WA E KRR BUE R
— W N F A AR 2R AR (2 B R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—)/\F=ZA=+—8ItFE (L&)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.
....... (contined) | e e
(d) Associates and joint ventures (d)

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(k)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associate and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)).

4 Ayt R (%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

®

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs. These investments are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an exception to
this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)). Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in notes 1(t)(iv) and 1(t)(v), respectively.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(k)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bz

(€9)

(h)

T NFZAS+—RILFE LB

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in accordance with
the above poalicy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at fair values, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property carried at fair value, the property is revalued at the date
of transfer. Any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss and any resulting increase in
carrying amount is recognised in other comprehensive income and
increase in the land and buildings revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
land and buildings revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

G

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease;

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 60 years after the date of
completion;

—  Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years; and

—  Other assets between 3 to 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)). Amortisation of
intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Both the
period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

....... (continued) e,
(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(q)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets
Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For investments in an associate and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(k)(i). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1 (K(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

....... (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

(continued)

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

1. B oR (8)

(k) %A W AE (f80)
() it 27 B T T T A ok A ()

— LA A B B 2 AR AR A

U B B AR DA B s L E - W (EL AR R
T 45 4 B 2 MR T (L B A R OR AR B
B BUH < 28 R e A 2 R
55 B IR 5 0 B 5 (4% 0 2 e R
SFEERHZHEBME)  ARBRNY
B R o %55l E A A A
B PR B (A 20 1% 7 390 A AR 19 L) 31 40 4
S AL E - SR B A - 2%
BT Al (L O < Rl E Y ORI B U
B IR IE S R B A e e B AR &
T H) 8 s 1 A6 B 7

il 80 (L e 188 <2 A BB A TR B0 > T
A7 B 98D T BB T R A R e (E
N 1% 2 FAF > F (s 189 % 8 43
A $85 [B] o 3% [ B0 (E S 1R AN B B0
JEE 2 B THT (L 8 A0 1 317 S8 7% S I 4 T Tl
ML M 4R T w5 2 MR T o

- ATt BRE RS 2 o Sl C AR AE

B A A 00 2288 e 1R R 4R A
N HERE o ZH A 4H 2 A Al RS R AR B 1R
SR R E CGRBRAT ] A 4 (R I
i) BN A EEME Z 28 H
BUERE AR C R B 25 A e B8 ) BUE G 18 -

A B C A R 1R A A ATt B
A 27 19 99 (L s 1R 1 RE % IR #H 43 10 o
HAR % B e 2 2 18 (3% i 2R AE Ho At
2 TR 2 PN R o

M e TR B R TE AN B O R T B
175 75 I WA R R T At B SR o ) R WSO K
T JE i 5 % e R Y (B M 4R o T % S R
WA SR AR M W S 4 T A [ ) R R
A RRAKE - FEHHWT - REIRW
BB (EL s 4R U AR PR AR - A SRR A
QI Dl e 5 TR A % B N )
< R R R E R SO R % B Wi SR R TR it
S o 11 A7E 45 4 MR 00 A R B A R ZEBE ) o A
[ 7 g S e Do N 4 LT
AR J35 A R v K [ o A A J55 A R 0 Y 5 )
L LAAE B L 1 0 T HL A58 i 1] < A R 4R
gt KRR o

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RiITHKARA 6

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %3

51



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.
(continued)
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(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:
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other property, plant and equipment; -

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held for -

own use under an operating lease;

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures in

the Company’s statement of financial position.
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If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

52

there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.

a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’'s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(iii)

()

(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

(0)

(p)

()]
(@)

(i)

(iii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with
note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service payments
are the amounts of future benefits that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods, calculated in
accordance with the relevant laws.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—)/\F=ZA=+—8ItFE (L&)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.

(continued)

(r) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

%{ZK

ZNF=ZA=+—HILFE LETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(g), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at
the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bz

(i)

T NFZAS+—RILFE LB

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued by the Company in
respect of the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, the asset
identified is a form of capital contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost
of the investment in the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(ii) if and when (j) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

i)

ZNF=ZA=+—HILFE LETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’
premises or when goods are shipped on board, depending on the
terms agreed with customers, which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Processing service income, management fee income and commission
income

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

Property rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-AF=ZA=F+—HLFE (KETT)

)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE LETH)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vi) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.

(continued)

(x) Segment reporting

(x)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group:

- Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative

— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

None of these impact on the accounting policies of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

3. REVENUE 3.

A 4R B 2 T S R A B AR e Bl
Bt~ SRAI TR B A Y EHE -

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental of
properties.

WA R HEERFEF RS EEE - MT
e 5 i it B AH < 0 dR o AR R RERR I &
T A BB A AT

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, processing service income and rental income. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during
the year is as follows:

2018 2017

— LS e SRS

$°000 $000

T FC

Manufacture and sale of garments ok K 81 B A 695,042 750,564
Manufacture and sale of textiles Rk K $ 4 &5 Bk 20,905 19,426
Processing service income i R A i 4 25,292 21,930
Property rental income LY E Y R 8,041 8,423
749,280 800,343

AEMZEFERE N - ®WE
FT-NE=ZA=Z=+—-HIEFEE N
124,476,0007C (—% — L 4F:124,255,000
7o) KA JTIR B BN E S > iz E S
(¥ $1 5 U 8 A S MU 2 10% © M55 ik
AV A o a5 & P52 {5
AR B (19 £ A DURE AN 5 B AE [ 5E26(a) ©

The Group’s customer base is diversified. For the year ended
31 March 2018, revenue of approximately $124,476,000 (2017:
$124,255,000) is derived from a single external customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.
These revenues are attributable to the sales of garments. Details of
the concentrations of credit risk arising from the customers are set
out in note 26(a).
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4. OTHERINCOME o & FEABMCRR
2018 2017
it SIS —E b
$°000 $000
T S
Net gain on disposals of A2 -
other property, plant and equipment TR 75 B A i 4 v B 4,610 5,788
Scrap income JBE R i 1,906 2,097
Interest income ) Bk 25 1,091 956
Management fee income (=L LN 804 804
Dividend income from equity securities RS 2 2 M S 3 517 486
Net claim income 5 g ik v A 233 707
Recovery of receivables Wi [E] DA R 4
written-off in prior years g > e iRk 130 =
Government grants B A B 119 933
Write-off of aged payables L E A K TR 90 73
Commission income R & 71 201
Net exchange loss T 52 s 18 V9 (1,018) (65)
Net loss on disposals of HEREY %
investment properties (note 12(c)) IR R AR (Mt 12(c)) - (2,822)
Sundry income FoAth i 75 2,313 1,858
10,866 11,016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ T )/\F=ZA=1+—BLFE (K&Emi)

S. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5. B Be i vk Al

BB A 2 Bk  (REA)

2018 2017
RN SF LA
$°000 $000
T T
(a) Finance costs (a) MEAR
Interest on bank advances SRAT ORI B
(including bank charges) (L FERATE ) 2,410 2,729
Cash flow hedges: Bl i P
reclassified from equity (note 9(b)) FEHE 2 P E B B8 (B AE9(b) 143 (10)
2,553 2,719
(b) Staff costs* (b) BIgA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e L8 R HAAEF 156,083 159,635
Contributions to defined Bt FORARE] E
contribution retirement schemes 10,232 10,300
Provision for long service payments, net 1 I R & B3 s 1 AR
(note 24) (Kt 7t24) 1,251 912
167,566 170,847
(c) Other items () HAb¥H
Cost of inventories? B A 611,731 661,036
Amortisation of pre-paid FE A AH 13
interests in leasehold land? SCIE 1) 8 57 55
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) MY G R (M AE13) 95 95
Depreciation* g 5,005 7,352
Net loss/(gain) on HEHE 25 v =B A SR
cash flow hedging instruments Bl e TR
reclassified from equity (note 9(b)) 48, (W zs) PR (B 7E9b) 2,317 (4,183)
Impairment losses/ WAEREE
(reversal of impairment losses) on: (I (R PR 1)
— trade receivables (note 19(b)) - MU IR K (B aE19(b)) 279 3,012
— other receivables — HoAth B UK - (1,840)
Auditors’ remuneration 2% B il
— audit services — E RS 1,657 1,979
— other services — HoAth R 5 481 507
Operating lease charges: meEHEEA -
minimum lease payments T AR AR B A R
— property rentals® -WEHE 6,342 6,571
Rentals receivable from investment 8 ) S MR WFR 4
properties less direct outgoings of I 2 57 1,328,000
$1,328,000 (2017: $1,116,000) (—F—-+t4 : 1,116,0007C) (6,713) (7,037)

E Cost of inventories includes $88,419,000 (2017: $91,209,000) relating to .

staff costs, amortisation of pre-paid interests in leasehold land, depreciation
and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types
of expenses.

A7 BORA AR B A~ AR
TR HE G - I KB RN - A B OH
#£88,419,0007C (=% — £ 4F : 91,209,000
TC) o A B SIS B R ALE B3O BERT B 2
IR B 2T 0 AR

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RiITHBKARA 6]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. HEHBERMAMPHEB
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) % & 1846 3 07 & W BT 18 8L 4 -

represents:
2018 2017
ZR— N\ ZE LA
$°000 $'000
T T
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax AAEBLH — s A B
Provision for the year AR AR TE B 3,885 4,126
Over-provision in respect of prior years DU AR R AR A = (324)
3,885 3,802
Current tax - Overseas AAEBLE — BEAb
(Credit)/provision for the year AR (B B (847) 2,747
Land Appreciation Tax &t 486 1,997
(361) 4,744
Deferred tax Y S BLH
Origination and reversal of temporary differences WM AERMELLMN 3730 ... (2287)
7,254 6,259
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated at TR AR A R R AR B A R 4R AR
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the ZAG I RERERL N I LI16.5% (—F — L4 :
year. 16.5%) M BLRFHA -
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the B s BT AN B 2 W 2 Bl 1E ) AR B B 5K
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries. MZBATBLRFIH -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Ea 8K AR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FT-\F=A=F—BILFE L&)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. HiOHBERI AP ()
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(o) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b)) B JE 37 i #0151 ik A 32 8 1 B 251 5 0 8

applicable tax rates: I -
2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR
$°000 $000
F For
Profit before taxation R Bl 11 s A1) 42,297 34,244
Notional tax on profit before taxation, Fie A B B
calculated at the rates applicable W 2w R E
to profits in the countries concerned I B T ¥4 ] ) 4% 26 TE 9,456 5,923
Tax effect of share of profits of JEAG &8 4 25 R Y
joint ventures ol JEL 5 288 (3,742 (2,874)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 09 ST A B T Y 2 10,110 7,740
Tax effect of non-taxable income PEZE B MO 1 Bl T 5 2 (8,035) (10,197)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax o R WERR BLBS s 42 1Y
losses utilised i 5 2 (4,420) (138)
Tax effect of deductible temporary o HE R AT S R B 22 B
differences not recognised T T 5 2 447 3,104
Tax effect of unused tax A Wl w8 A B BT S 4R
losses not recognised i T i 2 171 55
Tax effect of derecognition of ¢ 11 il 0 SE B T 1Y)
deferred tax assets Tl I R % = 1,594
Tax effect of undistributed G A ZE R A L iR A Y
profits of joint ventures Tl I Y % 1,221 (485)
Over-provision in respect of prior years D A 32 7 A A - (324)
Others HAth 2,046 1,861
Actual tax expense BRI 7,254 6,259

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED = J1 8K 45 B4 w)
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3R

65



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

7. .DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. ¥EME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the MR 7 i FE ) 55383(1) 5 M (A 7] (3
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies T A 4 G RE) B S5 280 2 KLE M B
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are B ERMEWMT -
as follows:

Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees and benefitsinkind  Discretionary bonuses contributions Total
Hia o W R AR Fitites LS LS it

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-NE CE-tE ZB-0NE CF-tF ZB-NE CE-bF 2R\ CZ-tF ZR-ME DRk
$1000 $000 §000 $000 $1000 $000 §000 $000 $1000 $000
i i i i i I i z i I

Executive directors ity ¢

Mr. Chan Sui Kau [:$:32 8 60 30 2,205 2,047 - - - - 2,265 2,017
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BkE A 60 30 1,911 1,911 - 500 - - 1,97 2,441
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk 60 30 1,911 1,911 - 500 - - 1,97 244
Mr. Chan Wing To RkiAEE 60 30 - - - - - - 60 30
Ms. Chan Suk Man BB L 60 30 1,165 1,165 - 300 - - 1,225 1,495
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel Bikasek 60 30 - - - - - - 60 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 2ty e 60 0 - - - - - - 60 K|
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan Bt et 60 30 1,472 1,446 200 700 - - 1,132 2176

Independent non-executive B JeAT %

directors

Mr. Leung Hok Lim* RERAE - 160 - - - = - = = 160

M. Lin Keping SRSk 110 80 - - - - - = 110 80

Mr. Sz Cho Cheung, Michael®  HiiEL A2 150 120 - - - - - - 150 120

Mr. Choi Ting Ki B 150 100 - - - - - - 150 100

Mr. So Stephen Hon Cheung® Bl oAk 150 - - - - - - - 150 -

Mr. Li Guangming* LSy - - - S - 5 = = = S

1,040 700 8,664 8,480 200 2,000 - - 9,904 11,180

* Mr. Leung Hok Lim has retired as independent non-executive director of * REWEEN_F-LFENLA T RRMELR
the Company on 20 September 2017. No directors’ fee was paid from the 2\ BB L IR AT o AR LY ] AE IR S A S A
Company during the year. HHM B TR -

& Mr. So Stephen Hon Cheung was appointed as independent non-executive s BRETEER T —LFE LA T HEZRE
director of the Company on 20 September 2017. FANFBELFRATES -

@ Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael has resigned as independent non-executive e EHEFEAER ZF - NE-AZHEEAL
director of the Company on 2 January 2018. AL IF AT E S .

y Mr. Li Guangming was appointed as independent non-executive director # I EER ZF— /NF—H AR
of the Company on 2 January 2018. No directors’ fee was paid from the A0\ TV AL EBATE oo A F) AR A A S
Company during the year. fTEF MG T AL -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EiLR A4 BAH
ANNUAL REPORT. 2018 5k



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

% 3 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ T )/\F=ZA=1+—BLFE (K&Emi)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2017:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The

LY. 0 N
A5 T 7 462 05 85 2 Ao

S (2Bt

A IO Ay EE S A B P B R R R SR

emoluments of the two individuals (2017: one individual) for the year WHE - #HE _F - N\NF=H=1+—HIL4F
ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: WM AL (CF B4 —fAL) Z
EWF
2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR
$°000 $000
i Tz
Salaries and other emoluments W L H A & 2,481 1,091
Discretionary bonuses i) 1% A& 41 1,000 700
Retirement scheme contributions EX N R 112 49
3,593 1,840
The emoluments of the two individuals (2017: one individual) with MiimEaMme N (ZFE—L&E: —f A
the highest emoluments are within the following band: +) B &N T T A E R
2018 2017
TR\ ZE L
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 78 %£2,000,0007C 2 1

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

9.

JC A 2 i MK Ak

(a)  FCfib 2 v e 2 W 25 AL B 1 BE 5 5 O

income
2018 2017
ZE-NAE “E—Li
Before-tax Net-of-tax ~ Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
BEHAR  BEBER BRKRLE REESE  REPE RERLE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Fr T T 77
Exchange differences on BE LA :
translation of:
— financial statements of - BEFES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong Wt/ Al B s 10,154 - 10,154 (7,584) - (7,584)
— share of joint ventures’ net assets - RELL
BEMEERTH 55,618 - 55,618 (33,012) - (33,012)
65,772 - 65,772 (40,596) - (40,596)
Release of exchange reserve to i ) Al o
profit or loss upon deregistration ZEHE LR £ R 4
of a subsidiary (note 14(b)) (i 14) - - - (12,838) - (12,838)
Change in fair value recognised in FERHER
the investment revaluation e EX1
reserve during the year {1/ (B 52 (1,370) - (1,370) 1,637 T 1,637
Net movement in the hedging reserve 3 i fif ff 5 ) 15 4 (2,701) 446 (2,255) 660 (109) 551
Other comprehensive income Jb 2 61,701 446 62,147 (51,137) (109) (51,246)
YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED £ KA R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

9. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9. b A B Ak (4H)
....... 1 Do SO S L S Ly e e 1 IR S O et 2 oL
(b) Components of other comprehensive income (b) Ffib 2 vin e 2% Y A1 8 B
2018 2017
R\ s
$°000 $000
T T
Cash flow hedges: Bl G aE B -
Effective portion of changes in R TR
fair value of hedging instruments TR 53 1 11 {1 5
recognised during the year (5,161) 4,853
Reclassification adjustments for il [l bk
amounts transferred to profit or loss: [LWNE=F -
— revenue — A 2,317 (4,183)
— finance costs - A& A 143 (10)
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) to % 2 o JE AR R
other comprehensive income Hoh 21 e as N EEAL (F0ER) 446 (109)

Net movement in the hedging reserve A AL At A T i £ A

during the year recognised in Tl R %) 3 o folh A 52 1) 1 AR
other comprehensive income (2,255) 551
10. EARNINGS PER SHARE = . 10, BEBEBA
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) FWIAZA
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit T I L A 2 F) T M B E 4 B A AR N | W
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of B B RE F5 A N A ¥ #136,558,00000 (—
$36,558,000 (2017: $30,380,000) and the weighted average Z— -4 :30,380,00070) K4 KB AT
number of 206,748,000 (2017: 206,748,000) ordinary shares in o5 I 2 A -1 $206,748,000 1 (%
issue during the year. —-L4F 1 206,748,000/%) FH& -
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) HBEW AN
The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per BE_F-NER_EFE—LtE=H=+—
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence H IF4EFE > 72N &) 5 i HL A 18 E 3 B
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. 2 5 G e R AR 8 M) B i 4

ZLAIFEIR o

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE T \F=ZHA=T—"HILFE (LE&xit)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

—  Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
covers the manufacture and sale of garment and textile
products, and provision of garment processing services.

— Interests in joint ventures: the Group’s joint ventures engage in
the manufacture and sale of textile yarn products.

—  Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and industrial
premises to generate rental income.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property leasing
segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interest in an associate, other financial assets,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed directly by
the segments with the exception of current tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including
investment income and finance cost and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses on
non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as net valuation gains on investment
properties, auditors’ remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and finance costs from cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

11.

(a)

7 i Bt

A5 1 DAy B AR A8 B HC ZE S o A SR I L 1)
AEMRETBERNE N EWER (5
BB R At R B — 2y X 2SI L
T = ARH T B W o A 42 B Sl S I AT AT
Re& oy A R LAUR T SUH T B WA

- B R R KB AR A B i
15 B3 o 99 85 IR B Bl B > B4R
PSR N T

- AEMEHELD ARHeE MRS
MR BB BT B A R A o

- WEME MR H AR L T
F LA O & Wi 4 e

Vg B3 A0V &N

T WP AG 7 R R B S Ay B WRE IR > AR
FRATEE BN B DL T R KT
R EAR B A - EE KRR

Rds B 91 B 0 4 T i Sk ik B W) 6 il 4T 7 7

THEEGMGETAEE > HAGQEEEE
o B A e mEE R
JIE B T~ T i [ A B T R L At £ 3
EE o oy HR R R A 2 R A B B
A AME > HA LA A B IH - R S B
JH A R R A S A

il VeI S T NS VS = R
G H I EE AR B WA R S B A A e 43
() 5 2 7 5 R S O A ) S T E

FARS B oy W A 1R 2 R T
[ IR RE BRI S - BUIA - 785 R B AT A &
AL THB A5 6L 46 508 Wi 48 K il &
R T T3 B R R A IR B B R
) 95 (E s 4R o 7E S TR B 40 bR A S - B
TH ~ TR G R R I ARt
Slfr 488 1Y e i A A 0 B 2 TE H () 0 4 E
W) S AV A A 1 A~ A ST PO < D L A A
The ol 2 A SEAT BUSAS ) i — LR o

PR A B [ SRR ERAIE - BiIH - 78 K
55 TR LA ) 2 o B G RS A B IR
ARG (B0 MEHRSE) - h
O R E A B B A5 R R B 2 R E L
gt K B AR AT % (s 1R
Sy E R EE B A E N E
Ao g3 v [H] 8 B 1 E (H 5 295 HoAb AN E A
b 2 BALEY R B AE AR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Interests in joint ventures

(a)

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, and
presented as a separate reportable segment. The Group’s senior
executive management reviews the post-tax result of the interests in
joint ventures, which is defined as the reportable segment profit/loss
for this particular segment. Reportable segment assets represent
the Group’s share of net assets of the joint ventures. Revenue
of joint ventures is not presented as reportable segment revenue
because it is not reviewed by the Group’s senior executive
management for resource allocation purposes.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 is set out below:

11.

g 6 e ()

oy W SR AR - VR K £ ()
G- F

A2 GBS B R R
HHE AR & RHE AR > I L — B H T B
Gy RSN o A SR I AR AT BUE BEN B 9 B
aENERER R Z R R ER
Iy EBHRT E MR T B R WP A 4 o
JHT 2 ooy i B AR AR B A A B 3k
B TE o AR AT B A B
RAFEMGECXEHEHUNIEEEY
Fie > L8 8 B R A ZH T 2 o Jl A B
N o

wE-Z - N\ER_E—-LHE=A=1+—
H k4R > A 45 8 42 16 A% 48 9 A & 47 I
BN B FAAE GRS B 25 E B RN

AT R2HMaWERMT -

Manufacture and sale of Interests in
garments and textiles joint ventures (note) Property leasing Total
T B K
RESH AREFHS ) BTN it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-ME S ZR-LE S ZZ-NE ZEZ-tRE Z2-NE CFRtF 22N SRR
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i A i Tz i 7z i Tz
Revenue from extemal customers A FAMEE F A 741,239 791920 - - 8,041 8423 749,280 800,343
Inter-segment revenue AEE A - = - 5 12316 1635 1,316 1635
Reportable segment revenue 1T 2B A A 741,239 791,920 - S 9,357 10,058 750,596 801,978
Reportable segment profit AP ERBAHERA
(adjusted EBITDA) (AR RRRL ~ 8L
il R RS A M) 16,560 16,085 14,967 1,497 8,834 6,923 40,361 34,485
Interest income kY 1,001 956 - S - = 1,001 956
Finance costs BENE (2,559) 79 - - - - (2,559) (2719
Depreciation and amortisation B g (5,157) (7,502) - - - - (5,157) (7,502)
Gain on deregistration of a subsiclary 45— 18 /4 ) &8 - 12,838 - - - - - 12838
Impairment loss on R BB e R
plant and equipment (4,758) (12,304) - - - - (4,758) (12,304)
Impairment loss on trade receivables  RENCHE & i & 279 (3,012 - - - - 279) (3012
Impairment loss on HlEd
other receivables reversed WEERER - 1840 - 5 = = = 1,840
Reportable segment assets AT BRMMRE R 570,519 586,166 571,043 513385 304,193 280405 1445755 137995
Addttions to non-current EEREE
segment assets duing the year MM RGE 2,005 4302 = = = = 2,005 4302
Reportable segment liabilities %17 A A A 105,133 121918 - = - = 105,133 121918
Note: Other financial information regarding the interests in joint ventures is MEE -

disclosed in note 16.

5 4 3 M 2% 1 A B R LS YR 16
i -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5

ANNUAL REPORT. 2018 & 3k



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ T )/\F=ZA=1+—BLFE (K&Emi)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

11. 7 ¥ 9 o (41)

(b) AT R W2 WBCOA B R - B

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities B4 2 Bk
2018 2017
ZR N\ TR
$°000 $000
T F
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue JHT 2B Tl A 750,596 801,978
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 43 FBZEHS 1WA A B 8 (1,316) (1,635)
Consolidated revenue LEE WA 749,280 800,343
Profit lit F
Reportable segment profit derived A H LN E
from the Group’s external customers JHT S 4y s A
(adjusted EBITDA) (FAEEFNBRFLE, ~ BLIE -
185 T A £ T Y 28 ) 40,361 34,485
Finance costs Tl AR (2,553) (2,719
Interest income F Bk £5 1,091 956
Depreciation and amortisation g Je o (5,157) (7,502)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary SRS — B A m ik aa - 12,838
Impairment loss on plant and equipment W55 B s A bl (L s 18 (4,758) (12,304)
Net valuation gains on investment properties Evd<g/ E LN e RE Rl 17,545 12,369
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses 7 o R AR K A 2E 2 A (4,232) (3,879)
Consolidated profit before taxation S5 BR BRI iR A 42,297 34,244
Assets B
Reportable segment assets AT 2N E 1,445,755 1,379,956
Elimination of inter-segment assets A3 SE T T AR T (63,636) (59,825)
1,382,119 1,320,131
Intangible assets Y & 3,080 3,175
Other financial assets Hoth 45 il A 4,611 5,731
Current tax recoverable a] Wi ] A HA B IH 131 1,169
Deferred tax assets % S B I ' 271 1,754
Unallocated head office and corporate assets RO T A &= 939 828
Consolidated total assets A EEE 1,391,151 1,332,788
Liabilities AF
Reportable segment liabilities AT EWMMN AT AR 105,133 121,918
Current tax payable JE A5t A BA L TE 16,036 19,162
Deferred tax liabilities 0 0B TE A i 17,013 15,209
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities AT FRARIR S A 2E AR 4,002 4,057
Consolidated total liabilities A AEAE 142,184 160,336
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, intangible assets, interests in an associate and
joint ventures (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of investment properties, other property,
plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases, the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets, and the location
of operations, in the case of interests in an associate and joint

11. 2B 33 (B)

(c) oI 23 3 %

TR A B () A B B AN R E S Bk
A5 R(i) A 4R F £ B 3 oAb 4 36 - i
R e R RSB B 2 B S T
M WMEEE  —BELRALAGEDL
M ([ JE B & 1) A b [ 00 38
BE o 05 BT TE 4 42 43 A B Sk 1 B
E o RBEFRBEETHBEYE - HAb
Yy~ RS BB R R ERCEE Z A W
FH B f) B £ T 7 MR AR 9B B 00 R B
for B AE 5 TR S T A ) T A9 R M
BRI E 5 T — W A R R A EHE AR
T i S 5 L 7 B T RE

ventures.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
A RE B ¥ 2 R ) ¥
2018 2017 2018 2017
R -NE FE L ZR-NE F L
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
T T T Tz
Hong Kong (place of domicile) T (A S B i 7E ) 44,255 41,348 255,827 243,875
Europe el
— United Kingdom — L[ 111,321 134,696 - -
— ltaly - BERA 137,493 143,724 = =
— Spain - TUBESF 71,593 67,544 - -
— Other European countries — H AR B K 121,295 110,275 - =
Mainland China Hp B K 36,631 52,325 613,219 550,031
North America e
— United States - % 115,173 142,567 - -
- Canada ) E N 9,749 9,410 - -
Others HoAth 101,770 98,454 5,294 9,732
feeeeneeeemeeeieneeieeceieieeieceeeicieieeoeooo.. S 705025 798,995 | 618,513 . 559,763
749,280 800,343 874,340 803,638

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EiLR A4 BAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FT-\F=A=F—BILFE L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 12. EWE - HibhE -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Wi 5 B it i B LA 1
....... AND LEASEHOL D L AND e e
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) W i A 35 MR
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery assets | Sub-total | properties leases Total
fefe 8
FefeH I iz
[(iER: iR H AL
3 52 RBE  bEE Ak | REWE LR it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T Tz T
Cost or valuation: SRR :
At 1 April 2016 A =F—RENA—H 110,582 157,444 90,584 358,610 233,506 2,858 594,974
Exchange adjustments W 5 B (2,402) (7,030) (2,677) (12,100) (2,294) (171) (14,574)
Additions wE - 7 3,585 4,302 - - 4,302
Disposals e (7,078) (56,870) (2,530) (66,478) (23,002) - (89,480)
Fair value adjustment A TEERE - - - - 12,369 - 12,369
At 31 March 2017 RoF-tHE=R=+—H 101,102 94,261 88,962 284,325 220,579 2,687 507,591
Representing: %
Cost Bk 77,336 94,261 88,962 260,559 - 2,687 263,246
Valuation - 1988 il - — LU 23,766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2017 il - ~F—+L4 - - - - 220,579 - 220,579
101,102 94,261 88,962 284,325 220,579 2,687 507,591
Cost or valuation: WA :
At 1 April 2017 h-E—LENA—H 101,102 94,261 88,962 284,325 220,579 2,687 507,591
Exchange adjustments W 1, 3 2 3,464 6,213 3,896 13573 2,432 287 16,202
Additions #E - 1,073 932 2,005 - - 2,005
Disposals i (1,491) (27,839) (2,227) (31,557 - - (31,557)
Fair value adjustment ATEENE - - - - 17,545 - 17,545
At 31 March 2018 R-Z—NE=A=+—H 108,075 73,708 91,563 268,346 240,556 2,974 511,876
Representing: R
Cost A 79,309 73,708 91,563 244,580 - 2,974 247 554
Valuation - 1988 Tl - — JLUE 23,766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2018 MWE- —F— N\ - - - - 240,556 - 240,556
108,075 73,708 91,563 268,346 240,556 2,974 511,876

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED = J1 8K 45 B4 w)
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 A% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T N\E=A=+-BLEE LBz

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 12. B EHE - Kbk -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W B B vk A B AL £ - 3 (%)
....... AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued) . . . ...

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) MR i 48 38 0 (489)

Interest in

leasehold

land held

Land and for own

buildings use under

held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery assets | Sub-total | properties leases Total

RS

Fle AN k2

R} iR HALE
R RS HbEE At REHE LRMER it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T T T Tz T T T

Accumulated amortisation, B aHBS i R :

depreciation and

impairment:
At1 April 2016 RZE—AFEIH—H 51,873 143,043 81,326 276,242 - 1,362 277,604
Exchange adjustments W 5. B (1,359) (6,846) (2,459) (10,660) - (83) (10,743)
Charge for the year BRI 4,071 1,480 1,801 7,352 - 55 7407
Written back on disposals H B R [ (6,789) (56,816) (2,454) (66,059) - - (66,059)
Impairment loss BEE# - 10,755 1,549 12,304 - - 12,304
At March 207 RCECERCACTOR 4780 91616 . o763 | 219179 | T 1,334 | 220518
At 1 April 2017 RoE—tENA—H 47,800 91,616 79,763 219,179 - 1,334 220,513
Exchange adjustments St R 2,250 6,262 3,846 12,358 - 145 12,503
Charge for the year BRI 2,634 642 1,729 5,005 - 57 5,062
Written back on disposals 8 B ] (1,342) (27,639) (2,196) (31,177) - - (31,177)
Impairment loss BEER = = 4,758 4,758 S S 4,758
At3IMarch20t8  RCECARSACTOR 342 . 0881 67900 | 210028 | . T 1,586 | 211,659
Net book value: R
At 31 March 2018 RoE—-NEZH=F—H 51,733 2,827 3,663 58,223 240,556 1,438 300,217
At 31 March 2017 BoFE—LFEZA=Z1—H 53,302 2,645 9,199 65,146 220,579 1,363 287,078

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
ANNUAL: REPORT. 2018 F %k



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 12. #EWE - HibW ¥ -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Wt 5 Be it i B AL A5 1 b ()
....... AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued) . .
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (b) Py 30 A T il 5
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) 2V HE %
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties 2R A AL AR R MR R 4 A H AT
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, BEFTE MY ZE - WARIE GE B 4S8
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in B 551355 [ A P& (E 7 & ] i 5 AT
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair B (E & R4y B o =R AR o A E A 5 &
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the SR 2 43 8 T F A A Ty s b BT g 2 T
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation Bl R E B EE
technique as follows:
- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 - B SR ORI c ER RS — A B
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for W HDAR [A) & BB R R R H R
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date BT E AR AE ORPES ) AREHE A
AE A
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs - S THOAIAGE - B R AR R g
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using B oK BE AT A 25 — AR Y m] BB S8 %
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs HARMBERAS B SEEERGTEN
for which market data are not available B o A B B 2y L AR
& R g
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - BRI E R E RN AR
unobservable inputs AR E A TEE
Fair value
at 31 March Fair value measurements as at
2018 31 March 2018 categorised into
B2 N4
=Z=H=+—H R-F-NE=ZH=+—H
Z AT AP T B4 Uk DA R RO
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BN N W00
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
Recurring fair value S R AR T
measurements
Investment properties: TEYE
— Mainland China PN 26,648 - 26,648
- Hong Kong - HH 213,908 - 213,908
Fair value at
31 March Fair value measurements as at
2017 31 March 2017 categorised into
W E— LR
Z=A=+—H W _FE—LFE=H=+—H
Z NP O ARAE & 4 K 25 DL SO0
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
5— 5 B =8
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
NN T Tc NN
Recurring fair value FEH PR A TR AT R
measurements
Investment properties: EVd-C7/E
~ Mainland China - PN 21,456 - - 21,456
- Hong Kong - B 199,123 - - 199,123

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RiITHBKARA 6]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

(i)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2017: nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31
March 2018. The valuations of investment properties located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried out by independent
firms of surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal
Limited respectively, who have among their staff Fellows of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The Group’s
management have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at the end of the reporting period.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

CBEYE - bk -
Wk )55 B e s B AL #E 1 b (38)

o 3% 0 2 1 R B ()
4T e N7 5% ()

BE_F-NEF=ZH=ZA4—HILFEE - H
— BB AR 2 [H] Sl AR T S = AR
IRERE A SO (CF— LA ) o A4
) R A A A R R R T B AR T 1
{ELJE A% R 2 R -

AEBMPABLEWER -F—NFE=A
=t — HAETEAY o A7 S O R
Paia ¢/E Vg Nk AR KRR Y 30
TG AT A BR 2 7 Bk M AT 5 (6 A PR
NEAEH S ZERBMT AT
EURMSEGERG B HEMIEEY
26 M B R U ELA R AR o R A H

AT 8 L 4 T S B 4
i 16 38 T A A 2

(ii) BB =B 2T i 5 2

Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
i 75 ¥ A LA R (| I3
Investment properties &M%
- Mainland China PN Market Adjusted RMB26,656 RMB29,067
comparison price per to RMB31,843  (2017: RMB25,908)
approach sg. m.  (2017: RMB26,520
5 HgiE BRI AKZ to RMB27,040)
R R AR
- Hong Kong - i Market Adjusted $2,740 to $9,180 $2,820
comparison price per (2017:$2,530 (2017: $2,741)
approach sq. ft. to $8,480)
¥ gk (ES L4
(A
Income Average $9.1 $9.1
capitalisation market rent (2017: $8.4) (2017: $8.4)
approach per sq. ft.
45 EAAL per month
FHA ¥ H T
TR A4
Capitalisation 4% 4%
rate (2017: 4%) (2017: 4%)
N[

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

(i)

(c)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in Mainland China
and certain investment properties located in Hong Kong is
determined using market comparison approach by reference to
recent actual sales and/or asking price of comparable properties
on a price per square meter and square feet basis respectively,
adjusted for quality and location of the buildings and income
potential. Higher the value of adjusted price will result in a higher fair
value measurement.

The fair value of certain investment properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using income capitalisation approach by capitalising
the rent derived from the existing tenancies with reference to market
rent and the provision for any reversionary income potential. The
capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation approach has been
adjusted for the expected market rental growth, occupancy rate and
quality and location of the buildings. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rent and negatively correlated to
the risk-adjusted capitalisation rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised in the
line item “net valuation gains on investment properties” on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Exchange adjustment of investment properties is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from the
properties held at the end of the reporting period.

Disposal of investment properties

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed
of certain investment properties located in Mainland China
to independent third parties with net disposal proceeds of
$20,180,000. The aggregate carrying amount of the investment
properties disposed of during the year was $23,002,000. As such, a
net loss on disposals of $2,822,000 (note 4) was recognised in profit
or loss.

(i)

(c)

W 55 B e A e LA 1 ()

o 3% 0 2 1 B B ()
A B 5 = B 2V A it 2 0 B (A

(Y SEHE PNEJUECS S 7/E PSS 2 B 8 A
B 15 B M) € B P AEL(EL S 5RO i 3 L ik
i E o Sl A 2 7% AT 3t b ) ST ) R A
7 K R g O W H RS R sy
B RPN E R R - RS
4 V8 7 A R o e (R R R R A N
HE A EER R

AT AL R SR R AP EE TR
P g B AL I L B E o ROT B AR A
BAMAKHE SR EAL > 2 RTHE
4 > BL R RE A RZ Y 36 4 39 3 4% T RE R
B e 2 MR TR EAL I P T
F B AAL R CARDR 2T 10 T 3 T
HEH R > 1hA M T /Y5 & A b B 55
R AR R o P (R R BT (E A
SIE W BAR > OB o AR R B AL L
RERHLBRE -

BEW N E R & S 1R
FKEWMTHREY M ERRFHE] -

B Wy 2 04 N S0 9 B e SR T H At 2 T i 4R
W2 Tl S Ak )

A AR JEE T 4R i o B R B BT A R A 4 R R
MAEBRARYE-

HIREX < g/ES

BE-E-LE=A=+—-HILEE, &
£ 9 DL H B i 45 9% #820,180,0000T 4 B 25
T 7 5 H K B B e W T T AR =
Jre BHEZREYERTERNZ BFR
I {8 £523,002,0007C » Kt - & s 8
#i2,822,0007C (M &E4) B h 18 %5 R FERE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

(e)

12.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are classified
as investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W B B vk A B AL £ - 3 (%)
.AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)
The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: ) PEWwmFHEI T
2018 2017
ZR— N\ TR
$°000 $000
T Fi
In Hong Kong — medium term leases s — P HATHAY 253,661 240,863
Outside Hong Kong — medium term leases FHIRA - H A 40,066 34,371
293,727 275,234
Representing: 0% -
LLand and buildings held for own use FRE B A0 R 51,733 53,302
Investment properties gL/ E 240,556 220,579
Interest in leasehold land FEREHE
held for own use under operating leases A A E -y 2% 1,438 1,353
293,727 275,234
Assets leased out under operating leases (e) DARMBRIE G L MALN YA

AEBUKEHESQHEREYE - M
BEaMENNE—BA - FE2=40H
A HE R R A AR A A > e R T A A A R
Ak o B A AR & A0 4R B
FHE - ARG REYRERULER
BERANYEY I B LB EYE -

AEEBBEATHERNQEHESAER
& HE WA e R A A BB T

2018 2017

—ER N —E—L4E

$°000 $000

T TIo

Within 1 year —EPIN 4,944 6,209
After 1 year but within 5 years — AR H T AELLA 4,944 9,888
9,888 16,097

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Impairment losses

A subsidiary of the Company engaged in garment manufacturing in
Bangladesh which constituted a single cash generating unit (“CGU”)
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, this subsidiary recorded
operating losses which indicated the plant and equipment belong
to this subsidiary might have been impaired. As such, the Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of the plant and equipment of
the subsidiary as at 31 March 2018 and as a result, the carrying
amounts of the plant and equipment of the subsidiary was written
down to its recoverable amount of $5,130,000. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of $4,758,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018. The estimates of recoverable
amount were based on value-in-use calculations which adopted a
discount rate of 24.5%. The discount rate used was pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the subsidiary.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of two garment manufacturing plants in
Myanmar and Guangxi, Mainland and as a result, the carrying
amounts of the plant and equipment of both CGUs were fully
written down. Accordingly, an impairment loss of $12,304,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The estimates of recoverable amount were based on value-in-use
calculations which adopted pre-tax discount rates of 23.2% and
15.1%.

Impairment loss on plant and equipment is recognised in the line
item “impairment loss on plant and equipment” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BEYE - b -
W )55 Be e s B AL 4% 42 b (%81)
....... #ééémmmwmwmwmwmww

AN E) B 2 R L GE AR R
7 R A S T — B 4 A A B ([ B4 A
AL e

HE T /E=ZHAH=Z+—HILEEFNK
WM S T SRS SR > M T
B W 5 M 5% A6 T BE A7 AR W o AN 4R [ R
T AEZH =+ — B E A
W55 B w2 n] g (e A A > ST ek LR T
{H % ] i 9] 4 %5,130,0007C ° H I - i #
FoEZ-NFZH=Z=1+—HIFEEEZRN
e 72 W (B 5 184,758,0000C © AJ Ui o] £ %8 >
fl 5T T PR o B EF Sk s e > WA
A B R24 5% AT AR B o il 2 BB &R 5
ol AT B B 5% B JG > ) A8 A 1Y JEUBR -

BE-E-LE="A=+—-HIEEE, &
4B BT A RS Al A K Rp K R R PG T T K
A 3 TR 2z nT i [ 4 A o S A SO D
R A A B A 2 R K R TR T -
Hi pzE —-F—-tF=H=1T—H1
AR 1B 55 0 HfE BRI (E B 1812,304,0007C ©
CINQERE: R WL 0 ST =i =
P > B4 Tl BROF BL ET AN B3R 28.2% K
15.1%HEAT A B -

ok B B v R Al 1R L e RR R AR A B AR R
R TR B5 B il s 1R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 %5 A% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE=2 - NE=A=t-BLEE QUETH)

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS . 13eMIP B = s
Club debentures
i
$000
T T
Cost: BEAR
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, W oE—NENH—H —E—tHFE=H=1+—H"
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 —ZF-tHFMUA-AEZF-AF=A=+—H 3,309
Accumulated amortisation: Euh e -
At 1 April 2016 W E—NEMA—H 39
Charge for the year ARAE B 9
At38iMarch20t7 .. BRCEFC-E®EA=TTH 184
At 1 April 2017 o FE—LAFENH—H 134
Charge for the year AR B 6 95
At3iMarch2018 . . . BEOFAWEA=TCH 229
Net book value: e WG A
At 31 March 2018 W oFE—-NE=ZA=+—H 3,080
At 31 March 2017 W oE—tHFE=HAH=+—H 3,175
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating AFEHEHEENCOFAZAREENTH
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. [ERSE -8 NI

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-AF=ZA=F+—HLFE (KETT)

14. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES . . 4. EEMBEAA
(@) The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which  (a) FR#II K - F— NE=ZH=+—H > &
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group at 31 ALEMES - GENAMBAERYEZE
March 2018. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise ZLIf g A Fl 2 FEAE o BR oy AR AN PR
stated. B2 Wy ¥ 5w -
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Group’s
establishment issued and effective Principal
Name of company and business paid up capital interest activities
3P AA CET R AL
VAR )3 3-5.8 0 R B AR B2 TR
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares 100% Garment
skt A BRA A s 3,000,000% manufacturing and
investment holding
AR B T
BEPE
Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) Limited The People’s Republic HK$75,600,000 100% Knitting and dyeing
BLHARE () A PR of China (‘the PRC") of fabrics and
H manufacturing of
garments
i Bhak it ~ Ep g
S AR 4
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100% Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd W manufacturing
HOL R A () AR AR AR B
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$4,000,000 100% Ceased operation
(Guangxi) Co., Ltd ERE] during the year
HOH T A (R ) A PR AN
IR B
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69% Garment
1A manufacturing
B B
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100% Garment
Fa wholesaling
BAH
Dagon Talent Garment Limited Myanmar USD1,000,000 75% Garment
4fi 1) manufacturing
& The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official names i %A ER L) e R SESCRIEE I A
of these entities are in Chinese. These are also wholly-owned foreign FAERE 2% o %N B R b B T 2
investment enterprises registered in the PRC. EEWAIIEBE R -
The subsidiaries of the Group do not have material non-controlling A 45 [ 1 B A WD NG9 EE K A I R %
interests. HOME 25 -

(o) During the year ended 31 March 2017, Whampoa Garment (b) #HZE - F—tHFE=A=+—HILEFRX
Manufacturing (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary A B — 2 G A B A A R AR (&
of the Group, was deregistered and a one-off non-cash gain of M) BIRAF 2 EERIBE s » d0RiR
$12,838,000 arising from the release of exchange reserve upon st A fifE R0 18] 435 ] R O, £ A T 28 A 2 — IR
deregistration was recognised in profit or loss. I Bl & Ik 45 12,838,000 ©

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED &R A 4B 4 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—"BLFE X&)

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE . ... . 15. -BBAER
2018 2017
ZR— )\ S
$°000 $'000
T TT
Share of net assets JRE A & I (E 1,220 1,220
Less: Impairment loss B A R (1,220) (1,220)
The particulars of the associate at 31 March 2018, which is an BEARR_E—/NFE=ZH=T—HZ##
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available, TR o T A% AN R R A T 4 i AE A IR
are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise ETA T e B A AEGEMWS > iR 2 B
stated. ¥ 7 L i o
Place of Particulars of Group’s
establishment issued and effective Principal
Name of associate and business paid up capital interest activities
U E-gAER B B SR b CBAT RBE A A BT B 2k BV o
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial The PRC RMB10,000,000 20% Garment
Garment Company Limited G manufacturing
JRR P I A R A and retalling
# The associate is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. # A AN L T VAPl Pl S
The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name of o RANZE T 0 R AT > 5 SRR I A
this entity is in Chinese. TS o
The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in DAL W s T DARE 25 15 R 5 B A TS R )
the consolidated financial statements, and considered to be not BE > Hatmalm S a2 i AE K -

individually material.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EiLR A4 BAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 1%

o M A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES = | 16. o B EEMSE
2018 2017
R\ TE—LAE
$°000 $000
T T
Share of net assets JRE A Y R 571,043 513,385

Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures, which is accounted
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements,
are as follows:

A 42 [ DLRE 25 % A AR A I B R I IR 2 &
BN ZFEEMT

Place of Group’s
establishment effective Principal
Name of joint venture and business interest activities
AEERAM JB0 B B 745 T MR HE TEEH
Wauxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. (Notg) The PRC 49% Investment holding
W — B EARA A" (M7 | RELER
Taizhou Changxin Textile (Xinghua) Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Manufacturing of
TN 574k (BLAL) A PR Al Hil textile products
Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Inactive
H B A0 PR A i Tk
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Manufacture and
B 1 VRS % Sl A PR ) HE sale of textiles
B T B BB
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Inactive
KOG A R F il L Eii e
Wuxi Number One Cotton Ethiopia Textile PLC* Ethiopia 49% Integrated
BEMRILT manufacturing

Note:

Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd.

These joint ventures are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in
the PRC. The English translation of the names of the joint ventures is for
reference only. The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. is established by the Group
and other joint venture partners in Wuxi. It holds the above mentioned
subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in the production of medium range to
high graded compact yarn, special textile products and garment products.

Wt

of yarn, fabric
and garment
W8 ik
MR R

I 85 — B B A B A W) 2 2 A W A

% SE A 3 B Th B SL 2 A A A
B ZEMEH LR AR > 23
HEm LTRSS -

I 88— A 15 B AT PR 7 J A SR T BRUEC A 5
W FE R M L 2 A 3 o OB b SOk 2
Mg wl > EERFAEEDEEEEHNEL
B~ R R B A R R A E e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16. 7B EM e (B1)

All the joint ventures in which the Group participates are unlisted KEBMBENTAESSENE WAETY
corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available. MBI ETHAFA -
Summarised financial information of Wuxi No.1 Cotton Investment e 45 — FR A% & A IR 7] B B B N |
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, and a reconciliation to the carrying BRI E, REGSMERETEGEZ
amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed RPN -
below:
2018 2017
ZZ2— )\ —E L
$°000 $'000
T T
Gross amounts of joint ventures’ B EMH
Non-current assets IE i H) 977,261 851,090
Current assets i) 817,107 799,997
Non-current liabilities IF Ui B A (5,110) (3,376)
Current liabilities It B B (623,864) (599,986)
Equity RE #5 (1,165,394) (1,047,725)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FLFEAE bl i B e AR
Cash and cash equivalents He R &%EEY 167,442 133,836
Current financial liabilities R S =E
(excluding trade and other (B3 AT Rk I
payables and provisions) T Ath JE A5 3 B A A5 (286,534) (286,857)
Revenue YA 1,421,957 1,459,201
Adjusted EBITDA SR FIBR A D ~ BLIH -
B % B 8 I 14 28 ) 101,751 118,369
Profit from continuing operations A P R A 4 SE T )
and total comprehensive income for the year PEREF 30,545 23,463
Dividends received B LS (12,926) (6,195)
Included in the above profit: B TE L3l (s )
Depreciation and amortisation Preg K g (63,196) (98,144)
Interest income ZilpsNEs 1,923 1,538
Interest expense FLE S (8,536) (6,530)
Income tax (expenses)/credit iR BE () FEA (1,397) 8,230
Reconciled to the Group’s interests AN G BRI 2 Bk
in the joint ventures
Gross amounts of net assets of the joint ventures & /& 1> 3 & & 15 (8 48 %4 1,165,394 1,047,725
Group's effective interest A 1 B PR R A 49% 49%
Carrying amount in T B BB 4 AR MR T (L
the consolidated financial statements 571,043 513,385

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EiLR A4 BAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FT-\F=A=F—BILFE L&)

17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS . ... . 17 XM EWBEE
2018 2017
TR )\ e
$°000 $000
T Tz
Available-for-sale equity securities: A R R
— Unlisted, at cost I BT H AR 855 855
— Listed outside Hong Kong, ~HW A £
at market value (note 26(e)(i)) Y T (M 7-26(6)(1) 3,756 4,876
4,611 5,731
Market value of listed securities TS 3,756 4,876
18. INVENTORIES s 18 FE B e
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) HFRREEM BRI FLIE :
comprise:
2018 2017
TR\ =R LA
$’000 $’000
T Fr
Raw materials JE M R 10,319 12,573
Work in progress TE R 47,557 50,107
Finished goods B 10,810 5,488
68,686 68,168

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense  (b) 77 £ 415 fi 3¢ iy B &0 56 1 #1232 W 9 43 A

and included in profit or loss is as follows: U
2018 2017
- S —F—L4E
$°000 $000
F Tz
Carrying amount of inventories sold 17 B8 B IR E 612,236 663,774
Write-down of inventories A7 B AU 1,230 3,660
Reversal of write-down of inventories A7 8 b 1 e (1,735) (6,398)
611,731 661,036
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years arose R AR BE 2 A RO A R T AR B AR
due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment products by A AE TR B A B A RAR Y B T R B
reference to the sales made during the year and subsequent to the S AT 5 IS 0 A T B B -
year end.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED = J1 8K 45 B4 w)
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES = = 19. MEWC ek B I fb ek
2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR LA
$°000 $000
i FI
Trade debtors JE i R K 74,888 76,518
Bills receivable FEWCR B8 30,744 43,388
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note 19(b)) W RIS (WA 190b) (3,546) (3,267)
102,086 116,639
Deposits, prepayments and other debtors BT~ TEAT I H A R i 3k 17,100 17,493
Amounts due from related companies (note 28(c)) ME i B2\ 738 (M 5228(c) 814 4,596
Amount due from an associate (note 28(c)) JE iz — T N W 3K (i E28(c)) - 17
Derivative financial instruments fiitE 4Rt T A - 94
120,000 138,839
Substantially all of the Group’s trade and other receivables are expected to A A T 2 A KR A M Wi TR R B L Ath I i R
be recovered or recognised as an expense within one year. 49 78 A 4 — 4 TR i Tl R R A S e
The amounts due from related companies and an associate are BRTHEIERE DGR FITEGZE S
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand except for W R s A B — W s R KRR WA R
those trade related items under normal trade terms. NI NS DS R (v S R g
(a) Ageing analysis (a) W20
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade AR o ARYEEE I B O R B R R B
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other 1% 109 B A T R B i SRR (T RE A B Uk
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for MR R R L Al R e ) 1Y R % 43 A A
doubtful debts, is as follows:
2018 2017
TR )\ —F L4
$°000 $000
T Fi
Within 1 month —1f# A AN 41,916 57,146
Over 1 month but within 2 months —{# A DA _EAHm R A LA 29,245 23,613
Over 2 months but within 3 months WA A LA EE =8 H RLA 16,756 20,857
Over 3 months but within 4 months =8 A LA EAEa{E A PAAN 7,753 5,837
Over 4 months P {E A PA_E 6,416 9,186
102,086 116,639
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 0 to 120 days JRE Wi B 3k B R U ZE PR A B H AR 0120
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy H a2 o A B A 2 B 85 R BOR S

are set out in note 26(a). H R Bt 5E26(a) -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Ea 8K AR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-T—\FZA=+—HILER (LB

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

19.

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year,
including both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

HEE W e sk B 3G il I Wk (%)

O 18293 L¢3 371

A B2 T S E A B R K M i 22 oE 2 e E
B DU IR AR o fif 2 A 5 5 A il
XY Y T A A A > R (B s 4R R B B
JRRE A R K B B A B R A (2 B R RE T (k)
i) -

A TR R SRR B AR 00 S B (LS R OB
s 18 2 AL BCGER 43) I

2018 2017

&)\ TR

$°000 $000

F FIT

At the beginning of the year RAEY) 3,267 267
Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) WM s 1R R (Mt 5(c) 279 3,012
Uncollectible amounts written off AT R[] 45 FE B - (12)
At the end of the year AR 3,546 3,267

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s trade debtors and bills receivable of
$3,546,000 (2017: $3,267,000), were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that none (2017: none) of these receivables are expected to be
recoverable. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
$3,546,000 (2017: $3,267,000) were recognised. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ro-Z-NE=ZA=Z+—H > A%H
3,546,0007C (% — -t 4E : 3,267,00070)
2 AT R R B M i R B B0 A R A
BLWE - a2 SR M NEE 2 KF
B - T 3 T A AR M X R K R
(R — L8 ) ardicln - [Hitk > fie 2
TR B #53,546,0000T (F — L4
3,267,0007C) . 8 #ERR - A< 4 [ 37 4 wh 5%
F AR R AT AT 5 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. MM sk B U i B B0k (4)
....... T N e e R S 1 N VN S SO o2 ot
(¢) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired O EI 1P 31T 93 383
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are f7 A A1 ) A A A b B R M ) B SR K
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as Je e W SRR AR B A BT I
follows:
2018 2017
TR\ ZE LA
$°000 $000
T Foc
Neither past due nor impaired ~~ BRfe@steeE 78932 103,418
Less than 61 days past due i i > 61 H 20,512 10,194
61 to 90 days past due i #1612 90 H 293 170
More than 90 days past due i HI90 H DA | 2,349 2,857
. 23154 . 13,221
102,086 116,639
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide B 4 40 30 T ek (L 2 T A B R B A 2 NI 4 AT
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. WK Bz % F AR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number 3 ARSI A Bk (B 2 I AR BB 2 4 B L &
of independent customers that have a good track record with the FEH ZEEFRALENEELHRR
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no I o IRPEM AR > BHERE > FHE
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances RAET WA FAERE R MEKXR
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the SEH) > H&5 SR PR VR oT A Bl | o AR
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not (¥ ST A0 R % S &5 B R A AR AT HE AR A o

hold any collateral over these balances.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Ea 8K AR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. e KB &% HY
....... AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION =~ KXMBEEEEEM .
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERBESHDAE -
2018 2017
TR\ ZE LA
$°000 $'000
F FIT
Cash at bank and in hand SRAT A7 B B 323,112 313,489
Less: Restricted bank deposits W 2 BRGERAT A7 K (4,360) =
Cash and cash equivalents in REARSRER
the consolidated cash flow statement B B 4 T B S E 318,752 313,489
Restricted bank deposits represent guarantee deposit placed at bank for 2 BRI SR AT A7 ARG A7 A SRAT 1E 4 O R A R
importing raw materials into Mainland China for custom purpose. ) o [ K B B i B AR R 4 o
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from/(used  (b) B Be i ¥ Al WAL # R B M4~ (Bi ) BL &
in) operations: Z Bk -
2018 2017
e 2IC: ZER—bAE
Note $°000 $000
Mt Fi T
Profit before taxation W o 7 3 ) 42,297 34,244
Adjustments for: R
Dividend income from equity securities R 38 5 2 I Sl 4 (517) (486)
Interest income 2k 4 4 (1,091) (956)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary A8 — B A Wi A 14(b) - (12,838)
Net gain on disposals of A 2
other property, plant and equipment ik 75 B s A i i 15 4 (4,610) (6,788)
Net loss on disposal of investment properties B R Y S 4 - 2,822
Finance costs & A 5(a) 2,553 2,719
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in leasehold land ~ FAATFE T A #ES  5(0) 57 55
Amortisation of intangible assets EiSiA £ 5(c) 95 95
Depreciation e 5(c) 5,005 7,352
Impairment loss on plant and equipment 3 B % £ sk (L s 48 12(f) 4,758 12,304
Share of profits of joint ventures T 5 78 4 2 1 A 16 (14,967) (11,497)
Net valuation gains on investment properties FEE ) S A (0 i v A 12(a) (17,545) (12,369)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) FE SRR, (1 4s) 6,389 (3,982)
Changes in working capital: BEELEY)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 8 () /b (518) 11,314
Decrease/(increase) in R o R A BB WS
trade and other receivables B/ S 18,745 (21,218)
Decrease in trade and other payables JREAT B 3R
F A R AT S D (21,466) (3,786)
Increase/(decrease) in T IAMH &
provision for long service payments s,/ (8) 348 (115)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KSR/ (FTH) Bld: 19,533 (2,130)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES = 21 WEAMRsK RICAMEA X .
2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR LA
$°000 $000
i FI
Trade creditors JREAT Hf 3K 46,717 64,702
Bills payable JRE AT B b5 - 673
46,717 65,375
Accrued charges and other creditors JRE T Y R At A R 36,969 39,530
Amounts due to related companies (note 28(c))  MEAT B/ T 3K IE (M #128(c)) 355 339
Amounts due to joint ventures (note 28(c)) JEAT A 7 A 23 IA (M 7£28(c)) 13 79
Amount due to an associate (note 28(c)) JEAST — Tk N F 3 (M 7E28(c)) - 197
Derivative financial instruments i 4 T H 2,353 48
86,407 105,568
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FIr A JE A BE ik B HC At BB AT 5k T8 001 it — 4R
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. TR 25 B R SO B 0 R D IR 7 o
The amounts due to related companies, joint ventures and an WRTHEIERE DGR T INETZE S
associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand TR N F) - B NER WS N R IE
except for those trade related items under normal trade terms. WA - R FIE > TR e A % R RE
B o
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade AEEEH - ARYEEEE B O RE AT R R
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other T E2 48 (B 5F A E AT BE 30 8 HAth JE A 20 1Y
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: R AT -
2018 2017
ZR— )\ R L
$°000 $000
i F
Within 1 month — 1 H AR 22,660 41,971
Over 1 month but within 2 months — A H LA _EAE AR H AR 15,656 10,171
Over 2 months but within 3 months WA A LA EAE = A8 H LA 5,417 9,589
Over 3 months =MALE 2,984 3,644
46,717 65,375
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

22. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000. The employer’s contributions to the MPF
scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme in Hong Kong for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s
contributions or refunded to the employer.

The employees of subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the
required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

22. & BB KA

A HE | 4 TR ) E S BE e w B R 0 2
MEFBEREHEA)BAZZRERAEZH
mE M AEEFH ((BEESFHD -
A A B A R oE KGR ARFENE > |
WL fa st NE R o IR E A S8
R £ Rk HEREBWHBZFHIZREES
Bl ozt A Z25% A ko M A A
Bt A2 FBR A30,0007C & & M 3
FE w8 /E B 2 kBN B B R 8 -

A A SR ER B R B M 2 B R
P23 B 4 W R O R SRR AR R B 22 B B &
SLgwt W e wzEE# ABML R AR e Rt 2 Oy
A HERARTEEREHEEZALR
e QUSRS T 3 A 3 e = N
A AR AR 4R B H AR 2 R R R R E -

AL E RS2 W E AR ZEE
Thov B OE M B A AR 2 DAL 'R
= R wt # 2 8B - W% W B o~ H
g B TE&EZHET AR H B ARG
B Bk o A S R OR AR R T R I 2
ME — B AL R AT % R B E 2 itk e

23. &k 45 W5 R DL 3% BT s W o 43 B

(a) &5 47 IR O 2 Bt 7 1 A 91 BE X 2y

2018 2017

&)\ e S s S

$°000 $000

T T

Current tax recoverable AT i ] A HA B TH (131) (1,169
Current tax payable JEASH A 3 ol T 16,036 19,152
15,905 17,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

(i) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

23. &3 FHB IR DL T 2 10 P 14 e (480)

(b) CHEREEBLIH (KR A :

() A5 Bk A il 1y 4B B (B

F

FE) H A1 3L 1 R A A g S )

Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of Provision for  Undistributed
ofinvestment ~ therelated  Provisionfor  long service profitsof ~ Cash flow
properties  depreciation  inventories payments  joint ventures hedge Total
&% EHRYE KIkEE  AReE BANEE
LETPATE Y S]] il KAEEN i it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 7 T 7r 7 7 7r
Deferred tax anising from: EERERE -
A1 Apr 2016 REZ-RENA-A 8213 6,722 (1,781) (4,744 7,304 (109 15,605
Exchange adjustments (3 kL (399) % 7 254 - - %
(Crecitec)/charged to profit or loss REERGEA), /TR (4,551) @) 1392 1398 (489) - 2,287)
Charged to reserves Rtk - - - - - 109 109
At 31 March 2017 g St Y p 3,267 6,773 (312) (3,09 6,819 - 13455
At 1 Apr 2017 REF—LEmA-H 3,267 6,773 (312 8.092) 6,819 - 13465
Exchange adjustments AR 465 (101) (26) (335) - - 3
Charged/{crecited) to proft or loss RERATR,GEA) 2,240 23 146 (10) 1221 = 3730
Charged to reserves 4 il - - - - s (t46) (446)
At 31 March 2018 REE-ME=A=1-H 5972 6,905 (192) (3.587) 8,040 (446) 16,742
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position (i) &5 o B 5k U8 7€ 2 i

2018 2017
—E N4 S
$°000 $°000
T T

Net deferred tax assets recognised in A AR IR
the consolidated statement of financial position itk 52 1) 0 4iE 5 JE P T (271) (1,754)

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in TEAR G B IR LR
the consolidated statement of financial position itk 52 1) 0 4iE 5 JE A (VT 17,013 15,209
16,742 13,455
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

23.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $10,179,000 (2017: $25,862,000) and
other deductible temporary differences of $16,660,000 (2017:
$22,478,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the temporary differences can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities. Tax losses amounting to
$5,315,000 (2017: $5,135,000) do not expire under the relevant
current tax legislation, while the remaining tax losses amounting to
$4,864,000 (2017: $20,547,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries
will expire before 2023, in five years after they are incurred.

. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

23. S35 WB IR DL 5 0 s 1 BT 43 B (&)

(c) A W W W I 4E B2 XU W 4 -

AR5 O BE SR ()Y & BT BOR A 4 E
Kt THE A AR R R A
B 11 3% %iE Bl JE G E 4 #010,179,00000 (—
F— L4 1 25,862,0007C) K H Al AT HE 40
T 25 516,660,000 (& — L 4 ¢
22,478,0007C) - it 76 4 B E B8 2 BLES
FAREIIN S > A AT LB 2 e B
G B o 2 HE S B U6 A 2 AT BE R AR o AR B
HRBATBIE LG > A g 20 B ks 18
445,315,000 (= &F—+4F 1 5,135,000
J6) o T AR A R N R EE AR B
18 A 4£4,864,0007C (& — L 4F ¢
20,547,00070) #% it #% 5 8 E A & 1
R TE T EAERMEY -

24, 10 IR % 4 45 e

2018 2017

TR )\ ZER A

$°000 $°000

T Fic

At the beginning of the year R EEH] 20,407 21,673
Exchange adjustments [T . 3% 1,973 (1,151)
Provision made (note 5(b)) N (W E5(0) 1,251 912
Refund during the year CNFET - 770
Payments during the year RN (903) (1,797)
At the end of the year WA 22,728 20,407

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitements accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service.

The Group does not set aside any assets to fund the above
remaining obligations.

MRAE A o CHRE A 0k 1) A 48 B A S5 AT: 1)
e B5 4F & 2 AR B DL BT AE A T E BN
Ik Z AR B At — A S o B
SO B BT AR R B S A0 & R
B AF BT 2 > E A0 BR B B AN 4 R
PRGE BT RE S HE 45 b A 42 BB fit 2 SRR

RAECH 5B & 715 > AEEA HAL A
TEA T B LT 45 0k % R 69 18 B AT i — 223
B8 o BT SO B e BT AR R IR B R A
Hr i MR B 4 BT E

A 42 [ 7 0 955 A ) A DA RE AT b ot R B
) BT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS = 25 JBCZK > Gf SRR .
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BE % AL BB By 2 55 W)
The recondiliation between the opening and closing balances of I B ] G A T B A% AEL BT 00 1 A A L R R
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the GERR W IR N 4E S HERS BB K o AN T RE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes 2 A I AR B 103 7 A ) B A A& 2 S I R
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the mr

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Land and
Investment buildings
Share  revaluation  revaluation Hedging Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
#E LEEE
JiAk Tl Tl 90t R¥ A it
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Wit T T I T T Fr
Balance at 1 April 2016 % SN
WACHZER A 38 Ll 008 ___Tonis_ 9o
Changes in equity for the year: ~ A4ERE M%) :
Loss for the year REEER - - - - (1,584) (1,584)
Other comprehensive income Hib2miks - 1637 - 445 - 2,082
Total comprehensive income REF 2T AH
Tor the year SRR SRR D 984 £ N
Divicends approved AAEBE A 25(0)i)
in respect of the previous year i E—EERE = = = = (20,675) (20,675)
Balance at 31 March 2017 RoR—-Lh
ZAET-H2ZER 208,418 306 41762 61 728919 979,344
Balance at 1 April 2017 BB LA
WACHZER AR B e O 78819 M
Changes in equity for the year:  AVAEJEBEG 5 «
Profit for the year KA A - - - - 28,800 28,800
Other comprehensive income Hib2miks = (1370) - (945) - (2.315)
Total comprehensive income A2 A A
L T 30 .. T e . Al
Divicends approved AR Ak 25(0)()
nespectofthe previous year | BREFEIOMS . . . T 0T 0675
Balance at 31 March 2018 RoZ— N\
ZHEF-NZER 208,418 (1,064) 41,762 (1,006) 737,044 985,154

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Ea 8K AR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25, BeAS ~ il A B e B (%)
....... (contificd) T Je il R o e T e T RSN L e e M T e s
(b) Dividends (b) A
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) JE fff 4 2 i e #E #F 5 A A 4 JE I B
to the year
2018 2017
ZE N\ —FE L
$°000 $000
T T
Final dividend proposed R EE AR IR
after the end of the reporting period of AU 5 A e
$0.12 (2017: $0.10) per ordinary share 01270 (—“F—+t4 : 0.1070) 24,810 20,675
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has &S A 5 R R B K B R R 4
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. HHMRSAR-
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) M K 2 vl JE #E # 4 N 5 L — 3 B 4F
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year JE 5 5l AR AE JE B A e 35T I B
2018 2017
ZR N\ TR LA
$°000 $000
T Fi
Final dividend J& IR b — WA
in respect of the previous financial year, S A AR A B A% E S S AT
approved and paid during the year of A A R
$0.10 (2017: $0.10) per ordinary share 0.107C (—&F—-L 4 : 0.1070) 20,675 20,675
(¢) Issued share capital (c) BEATHAR
2018 2017
RN\ —F -+t
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bepr ¥ H £ &y #H Gl
000 $°000 ‘000 $'000
T M T TR T
Ordinary shares, oET R

issued and fully paid: T &) & 3% 2 )i

At the beginning AR B A #
and the end of the year 206,748 208,418 206,748 208,418
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, HR 95 v > RBR BI 55 1 350 » A8 W) 1Y) 3 48
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value. R %A R EE e
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as B R AR SCIOAS IR IR 1 R
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share G B A HEAE A J RO & - % R —
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with SR L) 2 BLAR R o T A R AE AR
regard to the Company’s residual assets. TR EE LY =H R SRR -
YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED £ KA R A 95
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

@CE

25.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(e)

ZNF=ZA=+—HILFE LETH)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at
the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(g).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for land
and buildings set out in note 1(h).

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments used
in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged
cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 1(f).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund. According to the
articles of association of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC,
the subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit, as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations applicable to enterprises with foreign investment,
to the statutory reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

(i)

CIBEAR S f i B B B (H)

i 45 199 P e T 9

HE 56 ik

ME 52 7% 6 45 [ 4 B o BT A S 2 T
W5 2 E A B A ME SE 22 R o % G

T AR A W REA (u) BT 2 B R B R B e

& B A faff 1l

BEEAMMACEREE A AT
H B B RE R R N O R R R R )
A AR 45 R B REA (e) B9 & F BSK R B -

BB A A A AT 0 IR T AR B
ZEPNE

(iii) 1 b T B 52 A5 4k

(iv)

»)

(e)

A28 ) EL S B T G
IR % B T SRR R M ()9
T

i A T E A AR AT B IR T A A R
I HERR AN -

2 i it fli

ESRUNT R RO il T T RUNIUE )
R = WS & (D /AR S R ey
B o ez B R B P A R AR AR RO
BEFSE 1 (F) B < 0 8 3 oo 1) & o BOR T e 2 o

HAb it flf

At % 15 7 3 E ol M 2 e o RARASE
B BB o R 2 A AR R R A A
Wi Jag 2w ZE AR BE R R A E 4
22 P B EE AL R BB B E 2 A A
ZEDI0RE L E MM RS HE MM
AR ER GEM B A 250% %5 1k o ] %
il 44 P A1 80 988 0 ZHAE 0 WC B BT AR o

AN

iid

EOS

f@¢%£%ﬁ%%ﬁ%
] H % R E SR B
- A0 A & [% e #5 1§ kUL &
}E&$WA fiE 0 AE +F AR 1 B OR 4R
1Eﬁ&ﬁﬁ@$%kiﬁ1ﬂﬁo

7%%

= HE

A 4R T AR MR % 5 AR R R B R AR e
o 5 oK M R £ B KO BB AR PP
iy o W iR A B K T AT RE A s RO [E Hi
1] A J5E PR AR IR DL R B A AR o AR 4R AR
5% A 175 DL 114 585 ) 17 3 A SRR A L R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

25S.

(a)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines
net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less cash and cash
equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits). Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from the previous financial year, was to maintain the
net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at a reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks and trade and other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions which management believes are of
high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and for all new customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due between 0
to 120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

257

(e)

(a)

JBAR > fii i B B 2 (%)

¥k 45 2L (&)

7 A T 5 MR 1 B A R AR LR
FWE RSO TN o WLt o AR
RS 1 R 5 B BB AR (B BB
Fe A aK) > n b Ik 2 IR A S B 4 & B
EHEEY CFEFRMEH) > KHEEAR
645 HE 2 1 BT A AL LT 0 98 9F B R B UR Ik
oo

T AR B AR B AR AR T SRR O 1 I A
Z R s MERREB B AR R AR
A BURS o B AERF B R HR  A
A5 1 AT RE & IR A T BCOR A0 B S e A i
PR TR MR RREEA -
$6 5T 09 1 5 L B O DA BB AR

W oE—NER - FE—ELFE=ZHA=+—
H > AN W) Ko HAT ol B & A 7 389 % B 4 B
BRI -

A ) B HAT AT B S8 2> w45 R 32 AT fep A1
() 5 A 15 52 T R A

VR B G TR 2 AR
fei i

AEHMEGELEREFBRE P HBEGEE
U B B A0 SN JE B o A B2 R OR Z R A
At B 8 O 5 R B o A 4R T T
B 2 A B R B B A SR R R BLA B R
B < P s T o A B BB B SR AR e

1 52 M B&

A 55 [ B0 £ R B T AR SRAT AR R I
WA PR R B At R WK o PR AR BT
B > 3l 5 B A R 2 AR BB AR
B o

UERAT AT AR & > A 4R B A B B R
ARG EE AR TS MR AT S AR o

TR R A R R Al B A R T > A 4
BR—ESEEEENTERET LA
B P AT R RIS B R A o AN BE AN 4E
A %P R AR ST B M SO 2 R S R By
Tz aeh > UEREZEEINEF 2 LHBER
Ko % 5% 0 T 7E M 2SS TB BR BE o ME R RR K
Ty R H 02120 H (R £ o A< 4 @)
— ARG AR BB o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR  26. % B BB K &k T H 2 A F
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (4
....... (oMU | s e
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) A BCH B (51
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by AL EAKZNERER FEZSMER
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant B4 A8 4 R T R R e fE R JEL B oK 4E
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has T TRV - T N S L I o 1 -y T T = £
significant exposure to individual customers. The default risk of KIEBGREEAE » F P S EWATEHEBE RN
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an TEE A R B E B R B A s B (HAR R
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the o AEEH A KEBAE TR AR
reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration of credit B T8 R B B A S R K
risk as 21.5% (2017: 17.4%) and 42.1% (2017: 34.2%) of the total 5 IR i K R 3R R i S 4
trade debtors and bills receivable was due from the Group’s largest ZAE B AL 4L v RE A R B R AR R M I i
customer and the five largest customers respectively within the R A I21.5% (ZF —L4F 1 17.4%)
manufacture and sale of garments and textiles segment. A2 1% (ZF— L4 : 34.2%)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure £ B A 2 (8t JRE ST S 2k R At IR Wi 3K T AR
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Z 2 A B R B 2 HE — 25 0 B EE O B
note 19. 19 -
(b) Liquidity risk (b) i By & 4 Ml B
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their AREBMANZMAIZESEREAATATSAS
own cash management including the short term investment of cash W E M W &R E R E -
surpluses. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and REEZ BRBEMERE A MEYZ R
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient B E BT B DUREOR AR R 2 A B
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and KAl gy i 8Bl 2 b iE g Kook B B
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions HEME 2 T MRS S A PRAE > DL AT H e
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. ERMMHESFTE -
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at FRFFIIAEBMOAT AR T HREHEA
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s derivative financial BB A AR > T RIBE R A 4 B R AG
instruments, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash HE &0 e (A% S8R Z5 5 2 F
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates B B E e > B &5 B E Ry F R
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting ) MeoA 4 5 BE S H O .
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
2018 2017
SR N —F—tF
Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted
cash inflow cash outflow cash inflow cash outflow
FHERNEN S8 ERWBE 54 RN A4 F RN
BEHRA BEWm BERA Bl th
within 1 year within 1 year within 1 year within 1 year
or on demand or on demand or on demand or on demand
—AENSIEE R AERNREER RS ER R s K
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
T Ti T o F T
Derivative financial it 4 i T 5
instruments 43,589 (45,953) 17,728 (17,682)

Save as the above, the Group’s financial liabilities are repayable
within one year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow of these financial liabilities equals their carrying values
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Br £ SRt A - A4 B 2 A R —
AN B TR B R OR > R A
B & 2 b ORI B A B 4 At B R IR
UL BT 7 1A e T A I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(U]

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Euros,
United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds Sterling, Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) and Renminbi.

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rates for other currencies.

Forecast transactions

At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge its
estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of committed future
sales, excluding those transactions denominated in USD which are,
or are expected to be, entered into by operations with a functional
currency of HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy as the
Group currently considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency
risk and classifies these as cash flow hedges. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year after the
end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2018, the Group had
forward exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions with a
net fair value of $2,353,000 (liabilities) (2017: $94,000 (assets) and
$48,000 (liabilities)), recognised as derivative financial instruments
(see notes 19 and 21).

(@)

AAE W R B R B R B A B S
B B ¥ K Th 6 18 W LA AR A R (E
) E B 3 5 B E A R IROIR R B A IR
A B B 4 A R o 5] B0t TE R B 1 B
TR ECRE - RoT - BB BITAARK -

HR e T B SE T e AR M KT,
U ME S A& A R E) - R B
o R A o AR A T S L A B B R A ) Y
Ja B o

WA =5

A B2 [ fE AT AT IR [ BE A S A B
P i AR 8 B 2 Ad R BE L B R 3 A 17
WenmRRE W AB T EENGI L2
Loy o i A ELAE L SR T RHE Z 58 5y BT Y
AMRTSLLL R ILRHEZ R 5 - RBALHE 2
A1 BEE JL gz A RIS W o A 0 A b o 52
Sy > R By A 4 ) B R RS 2 i T 5 38 T 2 ]
(19 ME 24 35 8) Jal fgz I A B K o

A 45 [ R T 7 B A0 RE 5 4 DA S i L £ L
B Sl A 2 o0 RE 4 B T R vl o BT i
SNEAFMEIINH AEEHKZE —FN - 7
“E-NFZHZ+—H AEEBLE
W A S 2w AN RE A A 2 o T E (E T
% /%2,353,00000 (A fH) (=F — L4 :
94,000t (& E) K&48,0005C (B fE)) » E
MR A A Sm TH (2K E19Kk21) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—"BLFE X&)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.

(i)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency risk (continued) (c)
Exposure to currency risk (ii)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end date.

S 5 o, e 4 B e ik T R 22 A F
i (%)

£ B (%)
R Z 10

TRFESIAEE R B TR 2 B
B> w25 B R R T R T 2 O R
HERAMUZERDEE R LI Z G
FEE T ZE 2R o A B B R IS 2 & BT %R
A H 2 RV RE AR DR 25 2 -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KEZMRR (Dt
2018 017
“E-\E “E-tk
United Hong United Hong
Pounds ~ States Kong  Pounds States Kong

Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi
[y *x KR ARM
So00  $000  Soo0  §000
7z 7z i i

Dollars  Sterling Dollars Euros  Renminbi Dollars
i 5% % BE AR i
$000  go0  $ooo  $oo0  $oo0 S0
i 7 i 7 7 7

30 s oM - 3
560 o 89 56 80 50

- e B s -
5058 300 8113 - B TR

Trade and other receivables BBV AL ek 18 78460 10224 2%
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRL%EN B 51605 64 475
Trade and other payables IR R LR 1) @29 (1079 (9
Amaunts cue fromito] group companies i/ (REf) /A 7 7R 10,182 (267) - -
Net exposure arising from RACHEIGER

recagrised assets and liabiites AENEREET 9802 105614 9,200 4,365

51,156 4419 136029 8,349 B B
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1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE T \F=ZHA=T—"HILFE (LE&xit)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(¢) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if il

26. 45 ML B

*@

(c) B2 M B (47)
(iii) IEIE DB

TR IR AL 2 B B i
) RIR4EH HERZ G B RE S B (A4
P ZEU At 8t 5 B R A2 E K JEL B

FHREBTHZAY

(B B B dii

ﬁ’ﬁ?izﬁﬂ

foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the USD against other currencies.

5 ) o 3lf IR A R At L By A A B o
e E - ZIK%@fE%#%EEﬁ%EZHﬁ%%@
AN B R 36 T 5 H A B W 2 BE R 2 AE ] A
LPEIE PN 2

2018 2017
—E N\ —E b4
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
B B4 i A BB 4% v 1]
FE R e O B e A iR Ko AR B g A
kIt CFRR) Bm, (84) EF R s, (B)
% $°000 % $000
HA K T Epda T
Pounds Sterling Yok 10% 818 10% 374
(10)% (818) (10)% (374)
Euros Wi 5 10% 769 10% 697
(10)% (769) (10)% (697)
Renminbi NERY 8% 292 8% 26
(8)% (292) (8)% (26)
Hong Kong Dollars ~ # JC 8% 3,069 8% 2,108
(8)% (3,069) 8)% (2,108)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

ERFBUR M 2 & RACKR B AL EIET
HEMEAEDRE W HIA LR A
Z B RS 7 T DU 250 2 I BR B AR
s P B ME 4 2 BV R B AR o

IR 0 A 7 Ml 3 % 5 Bl B Y S A A
B2 B 45 5 Bk S T 3 A1 L B O < Rl

TH > A6 A SR A 2w R A R &
W%llﬁc KIH > 5% 5 A DU O SUEE 7 19 T RE

B oo B W RHE - %0 M A B d i Sk
SE 5 1O S s R R A AR T B B R
BHWER - ZoN U T —LEZH
] £ HEHEAT o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

26. W5 LR Y BILR A B T2 A
L (i

(d) Equity price risk (d) JBe 450, B
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity 7N B ] R 37 9k B 5 AT At B B RERE R
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities (see B AEAS SR B R B (BB RE17) o
note 17).
The listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have TR EREHSREEAE N L
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are FHWERIRBEER I RE S > WEM
monitored regularly for performance against expectations. WA H R BUA B S I -
The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term strategic AL BT A FE TR Y R R R 0
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least biannually Mo HRBFEMWE D —FHEITWR > JI
against performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited MRAER L F T 2 R B AR S
information available to the Group, together with an assessment of At &R R B Al AR 45 ] B = 10 0K e EE
their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans. M)A o
At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that an increase/decrease A E—-NEZHA=Z+—H BREAM
of 10% (2017: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for AR A MARBBRENE (LW#
listed investments), with all other variables held constant, would ) e B W A 10% (ZF — LA
have increased/decreased the Group’s other components of 10%) > AsHEra i, 6 0 A= 4 1 09 45 A
consolidated equity as follows: i JC A AR A an T
2018 2017
ZR- N\ TR
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase
in other in other
components components
of equity of equity
B2 oAb HE 75 HoAth
H)% 8 5 ARG 4y
Bim, (W) (g >) /8
% $°000 % $'000
HAE T "ot Tt
Change in relevant TH B 75 55 T B
stock market index: 1EEEE) -
Increase W 10% 258 10% (163)
Decrease W (10)% (258) (10)% 163

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index, that none of the Group’s listed available-for-sale
investments would be considered impaired as a result of the
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
pbasis for 2017.

R 2 B BUR > RSB R B #E T
PEEFEHEE LEBEARER &AL
MprfsA 2z &M TH > Mg TRESAE
B A &5 0 H O JEUR Z B R B > BRI
fo A 1A H A AEL RSP 1 A 2 IR
MR MERAEERERE L ATEE
o1 AR 9 B A T 4 B JEE A AR T B AR T A
B o oA S BRI OR A ARG AT
B TSR N & R T S BT Bk 5 8 AR
N IR (E © RZIH M 45 B & — B AR A )
ZHEMEELT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(i)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Fair value measurement
Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

(@)

.%iﬁ’?ﬁtﬁfi%ﬂ&%miﬂzz\ﬂé

E‘v

1)

AV B
B VR L T A
LT 1 5

T RBN A G E AL R AR A
fEE RS IR G B
Q) SEA35E [ A EERHE | BT R E W
DN (B RO U = (R AR o

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 categorised into 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 categorised into
e 2t RZZ—-LE
ZREA-H REB-NEZH=4-H ZRA=+-H REF—LEZA=1—H
TRl gl ve LYY ¥ ZAVEE AFEE AL TR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A-gM ATHRN RERN g-4H0 F2AN E=R0
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i Tr i r Tz Tz 7z Tz
Recuning fair value measurements 5 H AT i1 &
Assets: Wi
- Listed avalable-for-sale - ft
equty securities iR ER 3,756 3,756 - - 4,876 4,876 - -
- Derlvative financial instruments - ik & LE - - - - 94 = 94 =
Liabilities: it
- Derivative financial instruments - i 4RI LA (2,353) - (2,359) - (48) - (48) -

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in Level 2 is
marked to market by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the forward rate at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used is derived from the prevailing market interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

(i)

BE_F-NFER-F-LF=A=1+—
Hk4FBER > 3R A & fl TR AE 5 — 80
BLES — SR 2 AR - B A = AR
AN o AR R E AT EE
B B A WA A A HOH T LR RE o

R I3 ) 2 V- (R (22 A9 10 16 7 7
R P B 1

AN HE S A A EE (A
Ty R Bl A A E W E AR IR A HE A
MR BLAT B R ) BE R o JY Bl R T 2
MO A OB BAT S A R m E 2 -

VEX S R iy NN RS

FEER_F-NER_F—-LHE=A
= H DA SRR S A B MR 1Y 2
TR 2 MR 8 B P (0 e R 2 5 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

oo iy, OO moae O
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2018 not provided (a) B %~ /\4F=H=+—H » hRAELE
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: W R R AE 2 EARIEW N

2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR
$°000 $'000
T Fr

The Group’s capital commitments: A IE [B] 119 E AR
Contracted for ERT 4 428 290

The Group’s share of N LE [ A
the capital commitments of joint ventures: B EDFEN EARYE

Contracted for EAF] 6,853 6,840

(b) At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease payments in b) MZFE—-NE=A=+—H  BIEATM

respect of properties under non-cancellable operating leases are e 1 48 4% FH B & 49 7F H A& FE AT 19 Ak iy 2
payable as follows: BT 3BT
2018 2017
TR\ Tk —b4E
$°000 $'000
i Tz
Within 1 year —HEPLN 1,693 1,928
After 1 year but within 2 years — AR 1% (H W 4F DL A 773 1,116
After 2 years but within 5 years AR LAE LA 63 799
2,529 3,843
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held AL A BIEREKESHERE Y ERNK
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period AN BT — RS A — 2+
of one to ten years, with an option to renew the lease upon expiry N ELAMESE AR B AR ERE A
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes e B EH B E - MEHESG ARG
contingent rentals. fEe A4 -
28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28. P A L2 EHAR Y
....... TRAN S A T O S e e
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere % 7 AN B 25 i 3 oAt b 5 Br B 88 2 38 5 M
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following EERAN > REEFI L LN E KB AL
material related party transactions: VR
(a) Transactions with YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (a) MMYGME B A R A 7 L KXW B A 7
(“YGMT Group”) (TYGMTH: M |) 2% 5
2018 2017
TR\ —E L
$°000 $'000
T Tz
Sales of garment products FH B E 19,757 15,410
Rental income received and receivable SR/ EEE A 7,429 6,966
Management fee received and receivable e e i 3 804 804
Building management fee received and receivable £ it J i i i 5= 45 18 2% 261 288
Note: Mt -
As certain directors and their associates are collectively the controlling T A 2 O TR K A Y GMIT4E 8 e AR
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of YGMT Group and the Group, the L PEREHR (2 A B mi A > ARE B
related party transactions in respect of sales of garment products to YGMT Group H14AF > DL E M YGMTA B 85 & K & &~ &I
and rental income received and receivable from YGMT Group above constitute T E S Y GMT 4 1 AH < i i 2 Wik 58N 1 22 5 ik
the connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Other B ) o BYGMTH B 2 HAth 52 5 B # A8
transactions with YGMT Group are exempt from the disclosure requirements AT BLSE4ATE 2 BLE T LA ER o BT BRI
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A 51 AATE BT B E 1 B FE TR A B S5 e doqh B
of the Listing Rules are provided in the section “Connected transactions” in the 25 ) —fii
Directors’ Report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

(b) Transactions with other related parties

(c)

(a)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

28. BLBI AN L2 KSR 5 (4)

(b) JCAbBHREA 42 38 5

2018 2017
)\ SRR
$°000 $’000
T Fo
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. 40 53 5 TIOKS 9 4 BT B A )
Purchases of raw materials [ B JE A R 9,323 5,508
Note: Mt -

Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wuxi No. 1 Cotton
Investment Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. The purchases of raw materials
from a joint venture are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

Balances due from/(to) related companies, joint ventures and an  (c)

I 855 R VUK 5 B A IR Wl B AR T 2 & i A 2 I
HMBEARAA 2 EHARB AR - 7
B S W ISR R S AS o A L I BB B 1 4 AR I B

Z B -

W (A WA - S BERR—B

associate: B K -
2018 2017
ZR— )\ TR
Note $’000 $’000
Bt it i Tz
Amount due from YGMT Group JEE WY GMT 4R 8 3 T 814 4,596
Amount due to YGMT Group JEATYGMTA4E [ 3 H - 9
Amount due to JEAFWTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. #JE
WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. (i) (355) (330)
Amount due to JRE ST 3 B BB 45 44k A PR ) 3K TE
Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. (i (13) (13)
Amount due to JE AT 4 85 = VTR 5
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. B 8A BR A F R IE (i) - (66)
Amount due from JRRE W B TP A S A B 4 R A
Guangdong Xi Mu
Industrial Company Limited = 17
Amount due to JRE ST A BV 0 B S AT B 4 FD A
Guangdong Xi Mu
Industrial Company Limited = (197)
Notes: Mt a#

i) WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. is related to the Group as it is held by a director (i)

of the Group.

(ii) Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. and Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. are wholly owned (i)
subsidiaries of Wuxi No.1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the

Group.

Transactions with key management personnel (d)

All members of key management personnel are the directors of the
Company, and their emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

T

P&
£

WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. i A< 4 @ — {i; # ¢
HEF o HIt > WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. % A
BN -

T Wi L 25 A A PR ) S e 8 IR VLK o A A
RAFBAEHZ g8 MCERS —MEH
FR 2 7] 2 2 BB AT W I 2 D

BHARWZY

FTEEMABHAALNFZES  #
Ay ST E S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_T-N\F=ZA=+—BILFE LOET)

29. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

ESTIMATES

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections
of expected future saleability of goods and, management experience
and judgment. Based on this review, a write-down of inventories
will be made when the estimated net realisable value of inventories
decline below their carrying amount. Due to changes in customers’
preferences, actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimations and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be
affected by differences in these estimations. The write-down and
reversal of write-down of inventories are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management assesses the differences between the
carrying amounts and recoverable amounts and makes provision
for impairment loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in
calculating the recoverable amount would increase or decrease the
provision for impairment loss and affect the Group’s profit or loss in
future years.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is assessed
and made based on the management’s regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. An increase or decrease in such provision would affect
the Group’s profit or loss in future years.

Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties requires various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an annual
revaluation of the Group’s investment properties based on
assumptions agreed between the Group and the valuers prior to
adoption. The details of valuation of investment properties are
disclosed in note 12(b).

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 24, the Group makes provision for lump sum
payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC. The payments due are
dependent on future events and recent payment experience may
not be indicative of future payments. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect the profit or loss in future years. The details of
long service payments are disclosed in note 24.

29.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1wl A K A wt

A S AR 5 4 20 A BB MRS - AT
T 2 B R 3 BB % 0 B
AT -

A7 52 0 R

AEEZ A QIRE ST - IR EY
BB 1 TE 0 R AR R T Y AR B K K I 2k
B A MR (A B E BB o AT B
il T 5 B (E 2k 2 AR AR T (E - AU
B2 ] g AR R A B R0 A R T A AT B A
H BREFKEETREEAESE > T
B W 4 5 TR AN HT RO R TA) o TR % A A
wt B A [ AT RE B2 B R AR g W I T A A
A7 B MU0 L% A B B 48 [ A B 1 8 B R

WAL

ALEEN AR AN EENEE K
> URERBARFBEEBUSEE LH
BUAE o IR B R T E > R B AR A
e T 0 S AT i [ 4 B 2 PR R 22 - G AR
BB (E s AR A o WA AT i ] e T BT 2
B B0 A AT A 5 By > g 48 B D A s
R 00 R B SR OR AR AE B 2 1R -

I AT B A B HL A MR Sk 2 (L B A S AR AR
B BRE E WA B AR % 20 M S i B e i )
P AR A M A Al K w4 4 o A B R Y
il 25 8 9 0 5 2 A5 B RO 1 WSOHR AC Bk Ry
JH AR AR TR FI B o 5% I 2 1
Jin B 3B D i R B AR AR B OR AR B 2 A e

B ¥ AN

BEE W €A (E R T S AG (A B A 45 TR
BN R o AR S B L R E A
il AR AT > A R AP I B A S T BEL Al {5 T B
E IR SRR B BUE W) SEEAT A AT
fili o 15 Wy S A E W I A MR 1 2(b) 48 8%

1 J00 D 5 < 98k A

Wb RE24 BT At > AR 4R ) 2 3% AR A A i B
B 1 4 B A T UL T R 4 Lk 3 R T S
A9 — 30 A BRAE B - R IR B &
SCAY T PeE R AR S LT FE AT A SR
U o WA 2 AT ] 30 BBl HE 52 280 R AR AF B 2 4R
it o W BS & w M k2445 Bk -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% ¥k 2= B =F

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BETNF=ZA=+—BILFE (L&)

30. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 30. B kE&EREAL

MNoFE—-NE=ZHA=Z+—H > FEHERLHA
L 2 BB K R L 25 Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd (A Bl & Bt &
sE M aL) e

31. 2 v Jg i =2 W 5ROt %

At 31 March 2018 the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family Investment
Corporation Ltd, which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

31. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

....... FIN AN CIAL POS T ON o e
2018 2017
ZE N —E L
Note $’000 $°000
Kt it Fi N
Non-current assets R E e
Investment properties &Y 277,545 258,949
Other property, plant and equipment HAY 2 - BB S sl 95,640 101,583
373,185 360,532
Intangible assets T & 3,080 3,175
Investments in subsidiaries Bt g 2 4 E 80,703 80,555
Interests in joint ventures GG 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets Hopth 4 il & = 4,611 5,731
692,397 680,811
Current assets A
Inventories ety 27,207 31,291
Trade and other receivables JHRE AT 3k T L Al JRE Wi 105,348 109,855
Current tax recoverable AT Wi IR AR 3 B IH 131 1,169
Cash and cash equivalents 4 R B4 S Y 217,526 229,523
350,212 371,838
Current liabilities b URER
Trade and otherpayables MEMTERSKEHMENS 39,768 . ! 54,875
Netcurrentassets Wiyw@#ws@E 310444 316963
Total assets less current liabilities Y A A8 70 D ) £ 1,002,841 997,774
Non-current liabilities B R/ ER
Provision for long service payments R W IR 4 1 1,825 1,446
Deferred tax liabilities % 91 I B 1 15,862 16,984
O 17,687 . 18,430
NET ASSETS ¥ i A 985,154 979,344
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B it A 25(a)
Share capital AR 208,418 208,418
Reserves g 776,736 770,926
TOTAL EQUITY Wi 2% A 985,154 979,344

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

FEEOKN _E— /EANA LA

June 2018 LA AEREAG ESIMRE -

Chan Wing Fui, Peter Chan Wing Kee Bk 2= e Ak L

Chairman Managing Director e EEa s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R B

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZNF=A=+—HILFE L&)

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

RN.BEZF-NFE=H=1—-HIk
A1 B¢ O A 4EL 0 A 2 S0 B T
0 i T e SRR T R M R 5

HEAMBREZERZH - FiEgstmn
goME TERE T - NAF=ZH=1+—
Hk 48 BE 1 oK AR R B RT R HE AN K

B o T A BB R G R A SR AE A o Hoh
WARALEAERNT -

March 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to

108

(a)

the Group.
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning B A T 0 A
on or after CR% LY
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments Bt AR R B509% » 2 LA 1 January 2018 —ZF—N\FE—H—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 7 s B85 3t 5 2 HII 45 1558 » 1 January 2018 —F— \4E—H—H
EFHHA
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: it BT HI 554095 (BT » 1 January 2018 —ZF—N\FE—H—H
Transfers of investment property REWE : BEEEYFE
HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and it EBMEREREZES) 1 January 2018 —F— \4E—H—H
advance consideration RS2 ARG RFE
HKFRS 16, Leases s BB O RIS 65 A 1January 2019 —“F—JLE—H—H
HK(FRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments itk (B[ B A B E B ) Tdanuary 2019 ZF—fLE—J1—H

i RS20 BT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation of
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the
amounts reported in respect of available-for-sale securities, as these
may have to be measured at fair value at the end of subsequent
reporting periods with changes in fair value being recognised either
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(a)

7 B2 B IE 7 BG40 o T 0 I 2 AR BT -
AER R R R - BAT A I A
A5 1 2k ) TSR HE BB T D T AT R AR
B BB ik R A R R R B o A R TE 0 2
9 3 — 2 BRI R N SO At o

T 0 0 R SR O%R - 2 T H

Ft s i ot 1 B 25 Q B A A 2 BUAT Bk T
B2 ast Q53098 [ 2/ T A - i@ Rl
) o B R ERIZEOUESI A T B M
SRR S MEEBEEE e
it 2B HLE -

o 19 0 A 1 23 O % it

MR WAL > A< 48 B T I 2 BR T B B
it e ) 25 O R A% & 3w Ik i R O 2 OB
FEREE WAANRERNOEE A EL
FEE R R SOl AP EE 2 2 B R
18 i SCH A i aE A o
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1 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

(c)

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables and
other financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is required
to determine the extent of the impact.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements relating
to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness under HKAS 39.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The Group preliminarily
assesses that its current hedge relationships will qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 and therefore it
expects that the accounting for its hedging relationships will not be
significantly impacted.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue
arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified
the following areas which are likely to be affected:

(a)

Principal versus agent considerations

Currently, the principal versus agent determination is based on
risk-and-reward approach, whereas revenue is recognised on a
gross basis as a principal in the transaction when the entity has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with
the sales of goods or the rendering of services. If an entity is
determined as an agent in a transaction, revenue of the transaction
is recognised on a net basis.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue recognition is subject to transfer of
control as mentioned above. An entity is considered as a principal
when the entity has control over specified goods or services in
advance of transferring them to the customers.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control, it is possible that
the principal verses agent determination for some of the Group’s
contracts may change. The Group has assessed that the new
revenue standard is not likely to have significant impact on how it
recognises revenue from the existing contracts.

32.

(c)

BRE_F -NFE=H =1 —HIE
AP O A AL G R 2 BBCHG T
i 1 ) e 5 RE TR R O 0 5

RS
W fh

Fb 5 i ot Y J) 57 Q9% 2 R 98 (A 2 LA [ FE
i BRI BB g R332 T2
FEEREGR | o BT EHE Sk EA 0 R
{EL s 18 i 2 I 00 28098 AR s 1R S 4 - BB AR
Z o MR E F S B UL > H AR
Lot B EHE Sk 8 8+ 0 A EEE 8
Jies 1R S B T A B R o A% e (E
X AT e 2 B4R e R A 4 B ) T R R
Bo Hopth 2 b E 2 AR BRI o R AL
B JE AR e E 2 5 B 2 RE R AR M RE AN 2 )
#r o

2o fr it

B 5 i Y ) 2R O BRI M AR A b i s
A g wh e I S 39 UE T T AT Bt KRR
MR B BLAE o SR > AT & B M AT B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 3% M =

For the year ended 3| March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ T N\F=ZA=1T—BIFE BT

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, N.BE_F-N¥E=H=1+—-HIL
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 4 i E ﬁ? H ¥ AR 'JD B T
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE B e I % 53 R v RE RE K 1 58 o
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (continued) (41)

HEBRWMBRGENEISE - FLAEGHRA ()
(b) WA e w8 2 Wy [H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Timing of revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. At contract
inception, an entity evaluates whether it transfers the control to the
customer over time and therefore revenue should be recognised
over time — if not, then it transfers control at a point in time and
revenue will be recognised at that single point in time.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely
to have significant impact on timing of revenue recognition.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(j), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 27(b),
at 31 March 2018 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to $2,529,000 for
properties, $836,000 of which is payable between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore need
to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
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GROUP PROPERTIES
5 14 3

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows: AR EEYERRFEFIWM T

Location b Existing use i} Term of lease RS
Major properties held for investment

HFhERENEZ LB E

The whole building ik Commercial [EES Medium-term LAY
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street JURE T

San Po Kong, Kowloon KA 822 - 245

Hong Kong e

Unit 1505 - 1508 on level 15 N\ R LAY Commercial [EE 3 Medium-term FrARAY
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block 11) T

No. 11 Guotai Road 90 75 B 11 %

Yangpu District, Shanghai City BERE R

The People’s Republic of China (111) ¥ 51505 - 1508

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED &R A 4B 4 |
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB ITE)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-NE CF-HE CF-AE ZFtE ZZ-\E
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
S i 77 T i
Results x5
Revenue A 1,074,132 1,133,864 938,434 800,343 749,280
(Loss)/profit from operations & (1R A (8,499) 7,666 23,305 12,563 17,096
Finance costs T A (3,860) (3,671) (3,002) (2,719 (2,553)
Share of losses of associates JRE A B W e 4R (220) (359) - - -
Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures TG &8 WA,/ (B 18,515 (20,356) (28,391) 11,497 14,967
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 8 — B A R - - - 12,838 =
Impairment loss on plant and equipment R Tt A L 4 (6,935) S (4,656) (12,304) (4,758)
Net valuation gains on investment properties ~ #% %4 3 fit & e 25 1948 19,257 6,964 20,759 12,369 17,545
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBE AT A/ (1) 18,258 9,752) 8,015 34,244 42,297
Income tax B 15 4 (7,059) (13,856) (3,658) (6,259) (7,254)
Profit/(loss) for the year AR BE B A/ (5 ) 11,199 (23,608) 4,357 27,985 35,043
Attributable to: M35 %
Equity shareholders of the Company AN T RBERA A 11,920 (23,241) 4,413 30,380 36,558
Non-controling interests JEVE IR I R £ (721) (367) (56) (2,395) (1,515)
Profit/(loss) for the year AR A (1) 11,199 (23,608) 4,357 27,985 35,043
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
SR ZR-HE R -AE ZE-LE 2R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T I Fr T i
Assets and liabilities Y n kit
Investment properties, other property, BEWE - L
plant and equipment and leasehold land W R Al R 305,346 310,387 317,370 287,078 300,217
Intangible assets G 3,117 3,117 3,270 3,175 3,080
Interests in associates RNl 1,912 = = = -
Interests in joint ventures et e ditn 638,810 600,683 541,005 513,385 571,043
Other financial assets HAi g mg e 7,381 7,052 4,250 5,731 4,611
Deferred tax assets EICHIEEE 2,408 1,501 1,687 1,754 271
Net current assets B G R 363,221 375,093 388,952 396,945 409,486
Total assets less current liabilities BREAFRRE A E 1,322,190 1,297,833 1,256,624 1,208,068 1,288,708
Non-current liabilities s A& (34,898) (37,992) (38,965) (35,616) (39,741)
Net assets KRS 1,287,292 1,259,841 1,217,659 1,172,452 1,248,967
Share capital [N 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418
Reserves it 1,071,598 1,044,243 1,002,557 961,162 1,039,310
Total equity attributable to JERE R A AT
equity shareholders of the Company PR A RE 25 A 1,280,016 1,252,661 1210975 1,169,580 1,247,728
Non-controling interests JEPE IR IR R £ 7,276 7,180 6,684 2,872 1,239
Total equity B 1,287,292 1,259,841 1,217,659 1,172,452 1,248,967
Per share basis DR SE
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share HBREAREMERN (EH)  HK$0.06  HK$0.11)  HK3$0.02 HK$0.15 HK$0.18

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt KA RA 5
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